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>12.4 muiiion. respecuvelv. [or environmentai matlers reiaung o properues neid lor saie Cusls associated with
“nvironmentai remeaiauon ol properues held for saie mav be geterrea to the extent such costs. together with esumated future
-OSLS ang the exising cost basis of the property Ao not exceeqd. 1 uie aggregate. tne amount expecied 1o oe reaiized upon
~die

'he Company owns or previoustv owned two propertes anda has a parual wnterest 1 lour properues that are on the
nauonal prionues hist ("NPL") under CERCLA. the tederal "supertund" statute. The Company has been informed that 1t is
rmav be a PRP. together with mulupie other PRPs. with respest to the remedianon of eight other properues on such list.
Cerain other Company properues are inciuded on lists of sites inaintaimned under sumuiar state laws. inciusion of a site on
such lists wouid allow tederal or state "superfund” mormes to be spent on clean-uo at the sites if PRPs do not perform the
cieanup. The law governung superrund” sites provides that PRPs mav be jointlv and severaliv hat e for the total costs of
remediauon. [n some insiances. (iabilitv mav be ailocated througn liugauon or negouauon among the PRPs based on
cquilable factors. inciuding voiume conmbunon. Of 1ts properues. inciuding the NPL and PRP properues desciibed above,
the Companv nas oniv three sutes that individuailv involved future cost esumates 1or environmental maners as of December
31. 1994 1n excess of $5 rmullion

The Companv's total costs for 1ts environmentai maiters cannot be predicted with certaintv: however. the Company
1as accrued reserves for environmental matters with respect to operaung and non-operaung properties not held for sale, as
‘ell as cerun properues previousiv soid. based on the costs esumated to be incurred when such esumated amounts (or at
©4sl a runuMUm amount ) can be reasonably determined based on wuormauon avaiable. At Decemoer 31. 1994 and 1993,
he Company nad accrued reserves 1or environmental conungencies of $65.0 mulhon and $61.7 mullion. respecuvely. Based
n the Company s reserves, rnanagement foes not believe that disposiuon of environmental matters known to the Company
Wil have a matenai adverse etfect on the Company s tinancial condition. However. there can be no assurance that matenal
aabiliues or costs reiated to environmental matters wiil not be incurred n the future

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Union Pacific-Missount Pacific Trackage Rights Compensanon. As a condition to its approval of the
-onsobidanon of Union Pacific. Missoun Pacific Railroad Company ( "MP") and Western Pacific Railroad Company n 1982,
the ICC awarded SSW trackage nghts to operate over the MP lines between Kansas Citv and St. Lows. The ICC's imaal
Jdeciston dud not {ix the compensatuon SSW would pav tor the trackage 1 ghts. which commenced in Januarv 1983, After
1 senes of heanngs, the ICC set torth new principies to govern the compu'ation of charges. Union Pacific has asserted a
-laum 10r aadiional amowr.s gue against the Companv ot epproximatelv $63 muilion (inciuding interest) as of December

1994 ana filed a collecuon acuon in Federal Distnct Court. in eariv 1995, the court 1ssued an order finding thet the
ompany owes Union Pacific the amount of $60 99 muilion as of January 31, 1995 pius addiuonai accrued amounts
vouming since that date, but allowing the Companv (0 pursue a counterciaim for losses due to alleged discnmunstion agamst
he Company's rars using the 1ot taciitv. The Companv and Unuon Pacific have sgreed in pnncipie concerning settieisent
ot the litigauon. Whether or not tinal agreement 1o settle on the proposed terms 1s reached. the Company's payment to

'mon Pacific will be substanial. Management has made adequate provision for this matter in current liabilities m 1ts
linancial statements.

1991 Dunsmuir Deratiment. 1n Julv 1991 a derasiment near Dunsmusr, Califorrua resuited in the escape from
anK car ot metam sodium (a soii furmugant) into the Sacramento River. The deraiiment ailegediv resulted in environmental
Jamage, paruculariy the loss ol fish. piants and other orgamsms in approxamatei 3% muies of the Sacramento River.

Approxamately 46 lawswits were tiled against SPT bv pnivate nisinufis aileging costs and damages for perscoal
injunes, property damage, business iosses and other josses. Most of these were consolidated. and classes consistmg of
approximatelv 3,350 claimants were cerufied. In June 1993. SPT and the ciass acuon piainuffs agreed o settie and that

ettiement was given !inai approval bv the court in Januarv 1995  Through the settiement. the ciass acuon piamntffs wall
receive a total of $14 muilion trom SPT and the other defendants. Thurteen ciass action planuffs file.' appeais from the
prelimunary approval of the settlement. Those appeals have not been dismussed. The oniv rematung civii cases oa the

Jeraiment invoive 1our personai mjurv-onlv claims and one buswness ioss-oniv ciaim brought bv plamnutfs who opted out
it the class acuon




in addition. ihe State or Califorrua ana the Urnited States each filed suits against SPT ana others in the Unuted States
1Istnct Court in dacramento. Caiulorma L hese cases sougnt natural resourcs -images. Cosls. iniuncuve reliel andg civu
cnaiues. Lilgauon mnsututed eariier ov Southern racuic i tne U S Distnet Court 107 Los Angeles was transierred to the
sacramento lederal court Several angiing aavocacy groups and an envirorumenta’ group inlervened in the Sacramento
iederai acuon. All of the parues excep! Wne mtervenors reacned a seftiement wWhich 1s \ncorporated in two consent decrees
«igea with the court in March 1994 The consent decree invoiving SPT provides tha' the Company will pav $30 muilion
.na the other defendants collecuvelv wiil pav $8 nuilion 1n settiement ot ail governmer( ciaims. The settiement was subject
) the conditions that the 1ntervenors ciaims pe dismussed with prepidice 2na that the court approvea the consent decrees
\ter public comment. On Decemper 19. 1994, the court ruied that 1t would grant SPT's mouon to dismuss the intervenors'
claims and indicated 1t wouid approve the two consent decrees upon compieuon of the puolic comment process. On
ebruarv 3. 1995. the governments responaded o public comments and requested enurv of the consent decrees. The
intervenors prematuretv tiled nouces ol appeai from the gecision 1o disrmss their ciaums.

(m March 14. 1995 the cour entered two orders. In one the court found that the consent decrees compiied with
IW. Were lair. reasonabie ana made in good faith. and entered them as linal oraers as of that date. Bv the other order, the
_ourt clanfied that its December |9, 1994 decision was not a 1inal order of disrrussai of the wntervenor s claums. but that ite
“farch 14. 1995 acuons cid consutute [inai distrussal. [he entrv of the decrees ana dismussai of the intervenor's clauns
ermunates the liigauon except for any properiv brought appeais.

The Califormua Public Utihiies Commussion ("PUC™) also insututea an invesugauon into causes ot the dermiment
The PUC recenu 1ssued a aecision imposing Lines of $488.000 and certamn operauonal requurements. SPT is challenging
the decision in all respects
SPT 15 mnsured against most tvpes of damages and rejated costs invoived in the Dunsmuur deraiiment to the extent
thev exceed $10 0 mullion. As of Decemoer 31. 1994, SPT had paid approximatelv $46.8 mullion reiated to the Dunsmusr
jeraiiment. of whuch $12 muilion was charged to expense primaniv to cover the $10 nuilion deducubie. The balance has
een or 1s in the process of bewng collectea rom nsurance carmers. As of Decemoer 31. 1994 approximateiv $31.9 mullion
1as been recovered bv SPT from insurers. SPT expects to recover substanuaiiv ali addiuonai damages and costs under its
ISUrRNCE poucies (nciuding amournyis pavable pursuant to the settiement of private suits de: “Tibed above. as well as amounts
navable pursuar 0 settlement of the federai court acuon described above. except for $§750.000 which consututes penaities
1na the potenuai p=naitv ot $488 000 under the PUC decision) As a resuit. disposition of these matters 1s not expected to
1ave a matenai agverse l‘.[iFCC( on the Lompany s linancial conaiuon

fouston-Memo. in 1992 SPT received $45 muilion trom the saie of property to the Metropoiitan [ransit Authonty
Metro) in Houston. Texas. SPT beiieves that the contract ot saie i | 992 also requires Metro to acguire an additional $30
nubion o1 SPT negnt-of-way properties. Metro. on the other nand. has indicated that it believes an adijustment or credit shouwid
~e maqe v 'th respect 1o the purchase price {or the propertv 1t aireadv purchased. Negouauons between SPT and Metro to
-esolve the namer have been unsuccessmul. On March 29. 1994 SPT filed a lawsuit in the U S. Distnet Court 1n Houston,
"eXas seeKL.g damages and/or Specilic PerIormance in connection with Metro s decision not to purchase the additional $30
milion ot \PT ngnt-of-wav properuses and hurtner seexing a declaratorv udgment that EPT 1S not requured o m lth
ymounts 10 Metro under the 1992 sales contract. (Un the same dav. Metro fiied a lawswt in the U S. Distnet Court m
louston. [exas seexing a refund from SPT of $19 7 muilion under the 1992 saies contact between SPT and Metro.

renerai. SPT is nvoived 1n certain Income (ax cases rels 1ng (0 Prior penods. but pursuant to an agreement with

SPT's tormer paren. as part ¢f the Companv s acauisiuon of Si T. the tormer parent has assumed the hiability for smy

idiustments (0 laxes due or reporiabie on or before Uctober | 3. 1 988. the date of acquisiuon. Accordingiy, the Consolidated

inanciai Statements of the Company do not make provision tor anv taxes and interest of SPT that mav nave been due or
eportable reiaung 0 penods ending on or betore Uctober |3, | 988

\lthough the Companv has purchased insurance. the Companv has retained certain nsks { consisung prncipally

I a substanual deductbie per occurrence ) with respect to losses for turd-partv (1abilitv and propertv clums. In addition,

anous claums. lawswits and conungent iiabiliues are pencung against the Companv  Management has made provisions for

hese matters wiuch it believes 10 be adequate. As a resuit. the uiimate disposition of these matters is not expected to have
anv matenal adverse etfect on the Company s financial condition
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PART II

ITEM S. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS

All 1ssued and outstanding Common Stock of the Con.»anv _; owned by SPRC

No dividends were deciared or paid ;n 1994, 1993 or 1992. As of December 31. 1994, there were certam
restricuons on the payment of dividends bv the Company and net worth covenants. See Notes 5 and 7 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The aavances 10 SPRC of $719. 1 muliion at December 31. 1994 are not interest beanng. It is anucipated that e
~ompanv wiil make dividend pavments or advances 1n the future to SPRC in order tor SPRC to meet its debt service
»bligauon

ITEM 7. VIANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

I'he tollowing discussion should be read in connecuon with the Consr .dated Financiai Statements and related
Noles

Resuiis of Operations

SPRC transierred ownerstup of D&RGW to SPT effecuve October |, 1994 bv & conmbution to capital. The
consolidated financial statements have been restatad to retlect the combined financial posiuon and resuits of operations snd
cash flows of the compames for all penods presented

tear Ended Decemoer 31. 1994 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 1993

"he Companv had net income of $204 5 rrullion for 1994 (inciuding & $6.0 mullion charge for the cumulauve effect
I @ change 1n accounung 1or post-emplovment benelits under Statement of Financial Accounung Standards ("FAS") No.
|2 adopted bv the Companv etfecuve Januarv |, 1994) compared to 3 net loss of $193.0 muilion tor 1993 (inciuding &
5104 .2 rrulbion charge tor the cumuiauve etfect of a « fange 1o accounung 1or post-reurement benetits other than pensions
inder FAS No 106 adopted bv the Company etfecuve januarv |, 1993) The Company had operaung income of $231.6
muilion for 1994 compared to an operaung ioss oi $20.8 mullion for 1993 Operaung results for 1993 were adversely
ufected by severe weather and flooding 1n certain western and mudwestern states dunng the vear. a signuficant declmne m
Jutomotive SIpmenis. a shortage of power due to a temporary reducuon i the number of locomouves ieased by the
Ompany and a siower than anucipater! recovery in cerain segments of the economy. Operaung income for 1994 showed
the etfects of substanual increases in wratfic voiume due to unprovements i the economy and to Companv progrems o
ncrease proaucuwvity

Uperanng Revenues. [n 1994, rairoad operstng revenues increased $218 7 mullion compared to 1993, Railroad
{re1ght operaung revenues increased $206.8 mulion. Shipments of all commodiues increased. with the most sigmficant
PETCETILARE INCTEASSS OCCWITING 1N INteTmodai, coal. construction matenais and munerais. and automobiles. Other rauroad
revenues increased $11.9 muilion due primarniiy to increases in switchung and demurrage revenue associated with increased
rathiec volume. For 1994, carioads increased 9 4% and revenue ton-muies increased 12 5% compared to 1993 The average
net gt revenue per ton-mue for 1994 declined by 4. 5% compared 0 1993 due principally to an increase in traffic volume
for commodiues that generaied lower revenue per ton-mule (e.g., coal and intermodai traffic), as weil as to increases m
revenue deducuons and allowances that resuited n lower net treight revenue per ton-mule and carioad.




he following wpie compares trafiic voiume (1n carioads). goss Ireignt revenue (belore contract ailowances and
‘Llusuments) and gross ireigal revenue per carioad bv commoditv groun for | 994 comparea to | 993

Carload and Gross Freight Revenue Comparison
Years Ended December 31. 1994 and 1993

Gross Freight Revenme
Carfoads Gross F t Revenue
1_213_ ] ¢ 'huge Q’_‘_ l_?_’_}_ - (.M‘( L?_?i
n thousanasi dolars in mithons)

‘ntermodal § )76 19 8% $851.9 S7319 164% $1.170
{ hemicai and petroieum products : 11 4) 14 9 2892 i 4 1.794
oai 303 ) 151 ~993 2456 87
rood and agneuitural products ; ) 4147 3192.9 1.679
rorest products . ] - 432.0 398 4 1910
“letals ana ores |8 ! ¢ i . 3 2599 1,517
onstucuon matenais and minerais | 7] 15 1.7 172 151.2 1.003
\utomouve 2 I8 166.6 3T 2563

0

LW 00 O & Wn

Cotal . ) 129357 10.7% $1.429 $1.413

- Intermodal caricads and revenue tor 1994 increased over 1993 due o increased contawner-on-tlatcar

‘COFC™ business with major steamsiup accounts. as well as the inclusion of additional revenue-empty
car movements n the carioad figures tor {994 The deciine in revenue per carioad was due pnmaniy
10 the lower revenue per car associated with revenue-empity car movements

Chemucai and petroieum products carioads remauwned reiatively flat for 1994 compared to 1993,
vhile revenue increased for 1994 compared to 1993  The revenue growth was due (0 increased
shupments of environmental wastes. fertilizer. chlonne and caustic sods and organsc chewucals. which
\ieid a hugher revenue per carioad. paruallv otfset by the change 1n the ciassiulicauon ol certain piasucs
ratfic

Coal carloads and revenue increased for |994 due to conunued demand for the low-sulfur ugh-BTU
content coal produced by Company-served mines. This demand was trom both exisung uulity customners
ana new uulity custumers and was ennanced bv the customers' abilitv to biend the low sulfur coal with
higher sulfur coal in order 1o saustv requirerr =ats of the Clean Aur Act The wncrease n revenue per
carioad was due pnmaniy to increases in lengtn of haul

Food and agniculrural products revenue ucreased (n | 994 compared to | 993 on decliung carioad
volumes. Carioads declined in 1994 compared to 1993 due o the shutdown of a sugar beet processor
n Calformua and 1o reductions in grain tratfic during the 1irst half of 1994 caused bv a smaller than
usual crop nharvest that resuited from the severe mdwest tlooding dunng 1993 The increases n
revenue and revenue per carioad were the resuit of increased length of haul and changes in the
commodity rmx

- Larload volume tor forest products increased 1n | 994 compared to 1993 due to increased traffic in
‘umber stock ana parucie board that was dnven by increased construcuon acuvity and bv increased
wood chup and scrap paper tratfic. Revenue per carload increases were due primaniv to price increases
1 lumber products where stong demand in e Califorria. Anzona and ransconunental markets heiped
Support price increases as well as increased length ot haul for parucie board. wood chips and scrap
paper
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Carloads and revenue for metais ana ores rratiic increased for | 994 comparea to | 993 due Dnrn.aniyv
Othe starump of wron ore tratiic berween Minnesota and Utah 1n August | Y94 ana to increasea rerrous
fietals spments generatea bv a strong pipe market aunng the nrst half ot 1994

Construcuon matenais and runerais carioads and revenue increased for | 994 compared to 1993 due
10 increased tratfic in sand and gravei. cement and muscelianeous buiiding matenais that resuited from
increases n hughwav and bwilding construcuon as weil as Increases 1n muneral tratfic

Aulomouve caricads and revenue increased for 1994 compared to 1993 due o strong demand for
trucks and automobiies associated with general economic growth.

/peraung Expenses. Railroad operaung expenses 1or | 994 decreased $32.2 rmuilion. or |.1%. compared to 1993.

The following table sets forth a companson of the Company's railroad operarng expenses aunng the vear ended December
31,1994 and 1993

Railroad Operating Expense Comparison
Years Ended December 31, 1994 and 1993

1994 ; s Change

Labor and fringe benefits $1,085.1 : (4.2)%
Fuel <313 4 04)
Matenals and supplies 187.3 17.6 13.9)
Equpment rentai 330.7 ] 3.0)
Depreciauon and amoruzauon <499 0.

Other 1238 666.4 8.6

Total 12827 $2.8600 (L1%

L.abor and fringe benefit costs decreased $47 4 mullion. or 4 2%. for 1994 compared to 1993 The
-ompany reduced rail empiovment dbv approximately 5% dunng whe vear. The empiovment decline
inciuded 8 reducton of approximatelv 460 empiovees in the Companv's operaung departments. as well
as a redction of 275 empiovees due 1o the January | | 994 uapiementauon ol an outsouwrcing agreement
10r ‘aanagement wjormaucn services funcuons. In sddition. Innge benefit expenses n | 994 were
‘equceq compared o | 993 by the eiimunauon of an unemplovment pavroll tax in “uv 1993, Additional
tratfic volume durmg | 994 resuited in g 4 1% ncrease in rain crew starts which reduced the impact of
the emplovment deciine. Expressed as a percentage ol operaung revenue. labor and fringe benefit
expenses deciwned to 34 8% for 1994 compared to 39 1% for 1993

- Fuel expenses decrease. 51.1 mullion. or 0.4% for 1994 compared to 1993. The decrease 13 a result
Ol reguoea cost per gallon  vwhich includes nandling and fuel hedging costs) trom $.62 per gailon dunng
1993 t0 $.58 duning 1994, arnaliv offset bv an increase 1n fuei consumpuon atributable to the mcrease
in ratfic volume. Included 1n the 1994 fuei expense is $14.0 muilion reiated to fuel hedging contracts
compared to $9 6 muilion tor 1993

- Matenais and suppiies expense decreased $30 3 mullion. or 13.9%. for 1994 compared t0 1993 The
decrease Was due 1 8 CombInanon of reduced mamntenance of wav and equipment repair expenses. [he
redueed mamienance of Wav expenses wers duc nnmariiv 1o a $17.0 mullion reguction atnbutabie to an
{crease i and & change in classuication of the cepialization of indirect costs. [n 1993. these capialized
Ccosts were classified as a reduct:on in other expenses. Equipment related matenais and supplhies
EXpenses aecreased due to the |86 locomouve rebuilds capnaiized (as a resuit of more exiensive work
pertormed) i 1994 compared to 61 1n 1993, whiie 41 locomotve overnauls were cxpensed 1n 1994
compared to |58 1n 1993
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- Equipment rental costs decreased $10 3 muilion. or 3 0%. tor 1994 comparea 1o 1993 The cecrease
nciuded an $8.0 muilion decrease in car nure and a $2.3 muilion decrease in iocomotive anc other iease
costs. inciuded in the 1993 amount were increased rental costs associated with the muawest tlooaing.
Parually otisetung the decreasea expense were additionai equipment renta costs aunng | Y94 associated
with increaseq trattic voiume.

- Depreciauon expense decreased $0.2 muilion. or U. 1%. for 1994 compared (o {993

- Other expenses increased $57.] muilion. or 8.6%. for 1994 compared to 1993. Thus category of
expense includes outside repairs and services. joint facility rent and maintenance costs. casualty costs
and property and other taxes Expenses in thus category which increased signuficantiy over the pnor vear
\WETE Iormauon svstem outsourcing costs. property taxes. excise taxes and joint faciiity rent expense
and the capitalized costs referred 0 above.  Expenses in thus category which decreased signuficanuyv from
the prior vear inciuded costs associated with the mudwest tlooding 1n 1993 and other professional
services costs. £ xpenses [or management ir:formation svsterm outsourcing, unpiemented on Januarv |,
1994, were $41 6 mullion for 1994 (paruaily offset bv decreased labor costs as discussed above).
Propertv taxes in 1994 showed a $15.1 rullion increase over 1993 because the 1993 amount was
reduced by the favorabie settiement of disputed property taxes wn California. Excise taxes increased
$11.9 muibion over the pnor vear due to the ena:tment of an increase in the federai excise tax on fuel in
October 1993. Jount taciiitv ren: svper = =~==-_-d $4.5 muilion 1 1994 over 1993 because the 1993
dmount was reauced bv the favorabie settlement o. jownt facilitv agreements ‘vith another raiiroad. Joint
lacility may~tenance costs and detour costs showed a decrease 1n {994 due to costs incurred in 1993
associated with the mdwest tlooding. . addition. professional services expense. deceased $7.7 mullion
n 1994 from 1993

(ther inc - me and nierest Expense. Other income was $236.6 mullion for 1994 compared to $11.] muilicn for 1993,
an increase in 1 come of $225 S mullion. The increase was due prumaniyv to in¢reased gains on sales ot property of $250.6
mullion. most of * fuch resuited from the December | 994 sale of a transit cormdor and other related properues located between
Jowntow: | s Angeies and the ports of Los Angeies 37id Long Seach (the "Alameda Corndor”) for proceeds of $235 mullion.
Real estate rental ncome. net. incressed $5.2 muilion due primaniy to reduced expenses associated with real estaie activities.
Interest in.ome increased $1 8 ullion due 10 the hugher average cash balance outstanding durtng 1994 The remamng porton
o1 other income was an expense ot $77 2 muilion 1n 1994 compared to an expense of $45 1 mullion in 1993, an incressed
- pense of $32.1 mullion. [ncluded wn the 1994 amount 1s an increase in expense of $12.0 mullion associated with \he saie of
e oumts recervable. in December 1994, the Companv recorded expenses of $15 2 muilion for the write-off of defe rred loan
-0Sis and for redempuon premums attnbutabie (o the repavment of $290 muilion pnncipal amount Seruor Secw ed Notes.
Duning 1993, the Companv recorded expenses of $12.3 muilion for the write-off of deferred ioan costs. in sddition, m
November 1993, the Company rece:ved $27.1 rmuilion 1 cash from Southern Pacific Telecommunicauons Compeny (*SP
Telecom”) in full redempuon of the ‘P Telecom preterred stock owned by the Companv pius accrued dividends on the
prelerred stock, resulung in other *.ax e of $14 9 rmllion

[nterest expense was $118 2 rauiion for 1994 compered to $104 4 muilion for 1993. an increase of $13.8 million. The

increase was due prumar .. (0 increased expense on capitalized lease obligauors in 1994 as well as to $5.2 muilion charge
aitnbutable to the Company s interest rate SWap agreements.
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Other

In prior vears. the Company nas expenenced increased costs due 1o the etfect o: irlauon on the cost of compensauon
and benetits. and 1n the repiacement of or additions to propertv and equipment. A poruon oI the increased labor costs directlv
adects expenses through mcreased operaung costs. Fuel costs have fluctuated With market conditions and have directly affected
vperaung resuits. Operaung efficiencies have. however. paruallv offset thus umpact. Compeuton and other market factors mav
-onunue o restnct the Company s abilitv to recover ail increases in costs through increases in the price of services. Certam
of the wage agreements obtamned 1 1991. 1992 and 1993 have reduced the effects of inflation on operaung costs but provide
for cost of iving increases beginnmng n 1995, A substantai poruon of those agreements expire and are subject (o renegotistion
in 1995 (1988 with respect to the agreement covening the Western Lines)

To ensure stablitv of 1ts fuel costs. the Company has entered 1o fuel hedging agreements covering approxamately 95%
ol its esumated | 995 fuel needs at an average purchase pnice of $.49 per gailon (excluding nandling costs). However, 1n the
event that fuel prices decline beiow the average purchase price under the hedzing agreements the Company will not recesve

anv benetit from these ruel b deing agreements and mav 1n fact pay more tor fuel than 1t would have paid 1n the sbsence of
such agreements

The Company's Consolidated Financial Statemen:s are prepared on the histoncal accounung basis. SPRC reports its
linancial posiuon and resulls ol operauons on the purchase accounung bas:s. As a result, the Company retlects more
Jepreciauon expense than its parent. as well as larger gamns on saies of property.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND 5UPPLEMENTARY DATA

The consobidaied financial statements, including suppiementarv data and accompanving report of independent suditors
are bisted 1n the index to Consoiidated Financiai Statements and Consolidated Financiai Statement Scheduies filed as part of

thus annual report.

[TEM 9. CHANGES JN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH AUDITORS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

None




PART IV

ITEM 14.  EXHIBITS. FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K
Documents tiled as part of tus report

The financial statements. financiai statement schedules and accompanving report of independent auditors
are listed 1n the index to Financiai Statements and Financial Statement Scheduies tiled as part of this Anmual
Repon

Exhubits.

Document Description

Southern Pacufic Transportauon (Companv Composite Ceruficate of Incorporauon (incorporated bv reference 0
Extubit 3A to the Companv s Annuat Report on Form 10-K for the vear ended Decemoer 31. 1980)

Ceruficate oi Amendment ot Certificate ot incorporauon of the Companv dated Apni |. 1989 (incorporated by
reterence o Extubit 3.2 to the Companv s Annuai Report on Form 10-K for the vear ended December 31, 1989).

Ceruficate of Amendment ot Ceruficate of Incorporauon of the Company dated August 9. 1993 (incorporated by
reterence to Extubit 3.3 to the Companv s Annual Report on From 10-K for the vear ended December 31, 1993).

Bv-laws of the (Companv. as adopted October |3, 1988 (incorporated by reterence to Extubit 3.2 to the Company's
Annual Report on Form 0-K for the vear ended December 31. [988)

Debt Instruments: The Company 1s not tiling anv instruments evidencing indebtedness because the total amount
Of secunues authonzed under anv singie such wnstrument does not exceed | 0% of the Companv's total assets. The
reqistrant agrees to provide the Comrmussion upon request copie; of instruriients defirung ithe ngnts of hoiders of
long-term debt of the registrant ana 1ts subsidianes tor which consoiidated financiai statements are requured to be
filed with the Commussion

Receivabies Purchase Agreement between the Companv ana Rio Uranae Receivabies. inc. dated as of November
. 1989 (incorporated bv reterence to Extubit 10 2 of the Companv's Annuai Report on Form | 0-K for the vma;hi
Decemoer 31. 1989)

Receivables Purchase Agreement between St Lows Southwestern Railwav Company and Rio Grande
Receivables. [nc. dated as ot November i. |989 (incorporated by reterence to Extubit 10.2 of the Company's Anual
Report on Form [0-K for the vear ended December 31. 1989)

Receivables Purchase Agreement between The Denver and Rio Grande Western Raiiroad Company and Rio
Urande Receivables. Inc. dated as of November | | 989 (incorporated bv reterence to Extubit 10.3 to SPRC's
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the vear ended December 31. 1994)

Southern Pacufic Rail Corporauon Empiovment Agreement with E. L. M. vers dated Julv 16. 1993 (1 v ormted
bv reterence to Extubit 10 14 1o SPRC's Remstration Statement on Form -1 that was imuallv filed on Mav 12, 1993
File No. 33-62608) ). Southern Pactfic Rail Corporauon Agreement dated March 3. 1994 (accepted March 7,
1994) with E. L. Movers (incorporated by reterence to Extubit 10.17 to SPRC's Annuai Report on Form 10-K far
the vear ended December 31. 1993). and Agreement with E. L. Movers dated Februarv |4, 1995 (incorporaie : by
reterence to Exhubit 10 4 to SPRC's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the vear ended December 31, 1994).®




Document Descripuon

Form of Remistrauon Rights Agreement (incorporated bv reference o Extubit 10 19 1o SPRC's Registrauon
Statement on Form S-1 that was muallv filed on Mav 12. 1993 (File No. >-626080)

Form of Corporate Matters Agreemen. (incorporaied by reference 1o Extubit 10 20 to SPRC's Regstration
Statement on Form S-1 that was trutaii filed on May 1 2. 1993 (File No 33-62608))

Form of 1993 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated bv reference to Exhibit 10.21 to SPRC'S Registrauon Statement

on Form S-1 that was iuually filed on Mav 12. 1993 (File No. 33-62608))

Zmpiovment Agreement with Cannon Y. Harvev daied June i. 1993 (incorporated by reterence to Exhibit 10.15
10 SPRC's Registranon Statemnent on Form S-1 that was wuualiv filed on December 7. 1993 (File No. 33-73] 16)),
and Amendment 1o such Agreement dated December |. 994 (accepied Decemper 7. 1994) (incorporated by
reterence to Exhubit 10.8 to SPRC's Annuaj Report on Form 10-K for the penod ending December 31. 1994) ¢

Emplovment Agreement with Thomas J Matthews dated August |. 1993 {incorporated bv reference to Exhibit 10.16
to SPRC's Registrauon Statement on Form S-1 that was nually filed on December 17, 1993 (File No. 33-
73116)). and Amendment to such Agreement dated Januarv |, 1995 (incorporated by reference to  Exhibit 10.9
1o SPRC's Annuai Report on Form 10-K for the peniod ending December 31, 1994) *

Emplovment Agreement with Robert f - Starze] datad October 26. 1994 (incerporated by reterence to Exhibit 10.10
to SPRC's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the penod ending Decemnber 31, 1994) *

Emplovment Agreement with Donald C. Orns dated February 21. 1995 (incorporated by reterence to Exhibit 10.11
0 SPRC's Annuai Report on Form }0-K for the peniod ending December 31, 1994) *

Emploviment Agreement with Jerrv R Dawis dated February 20. 1995 (incorporated bv reterence to Exiuibit 10.12
10 SPRC's Annuai Report on Form 10-K for the penod ending December 31, 1994) *

Subsidianes of the Company

‘he Regstrant will furmush to a requesung secuntv holder anv Extubit reguested upon pavment of the Registrant's reasonsbie
-OPYINg charges and expenses wn furmusiung the £xhbit

* Management contract or compensalory plan. contract or arrangement required to be filed as an Exhubit pursuant to jtem
(¢}

B Reports on Form 8-K
The Company did not file anv reports on Form 8-K dunng the three months ended December 31 . 19594
Other Exabits:
No exiubits in addition to those previousiv filed or listed in item 4(a)(3) are filed herewm.
Other Financial Statement Schedules

No additional tinanciai statement scheduies are required.




SIGNATURES

Pursuant 1o the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Excnange Act of 1934. the Registrant bas

duly  caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned. thereunto duly
authornzed.

SOUTHERN PACIFIC TRANSPORTATION
COMPANY

s/B C Xane
8. C. Kane
Controller
(Principal Accounung Officer)
Date: March 23, 1995

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report bas been signed
by the foliowing persons on behalf of the Registrant in the capacities 2nd on the dates indicated.

below

Jate: March 23, 1995 8/ Jerry R. Dawis

Jerry R. Dawis
Chairman. and Chief Executive Officer and
Director (Frincipai Executive Officer)

s/ Robert F_Starzei
Robert F. Starzei

Vice Chairman and Direcior

March 23 s/ Donaid C_Omis

Donaid C. Oms
President ana Chief Operaung
Mficer and Director

s Thomas J. Matthews
Thomas J. Matthews
wemor Vice President—Admimstration and Direcior

March 23, s/ Lawrence C_Yarberry
Lawrence C Yarberry
lice Presideni-—Finance
Principai Financial Officer:




SOUTHERN PACIFIC TRANSPORTATION COMPANY
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE

Report of Independent Auditors

- unsoiidated Halance Sheets. Decemver 31. 1994 and 1993

(onsoi:dated Statements o Operations for the Years Ended December 31. 1994, 1993 and 1992
onsolidated Statemenis ot Stockholder's Equity for the Years Ended Decemoer 31. 1994. 1993 and 1992
vnsolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31. 1994, 1993 and 1992

‘otes 1o Consolidated Financial Statements, December 31. 1994

Schedule

VIl Vaiuauon and Qualifving Accounts and Reserves

All other scheduies are omunted because thev are not applicabie or because the required informauon 13 shown in the

inancial statements or the notes thereto. Columns ornittad from schedules filed have been omitted because the information
s not appilicable

Financiai staiements and summanzed £ 1ancial information of companies accounted for bv the equitv method have been
mitlieg because consigered 1 the :.qg_rcgalc, or leVldU&il\'. thev wouid not consutute a sxmuicam subsidiary.




The Board of Directors
Southern “:cific Transporiation Company

We have sudiied the accompanving consoirdated balance sheets of Southern Pacific Transportauon Company and Subsichary
Companues (a8 whollv-owned subsidiary of Southern Pacific Rail Corporauon ) as of Decemper 31. 1994 ana 1993, and the
reiated consobidated statements of operanous, stockholder's equuty, and cash flows for each of the vears in the three-vear penod
ended December 31, 1994 [n connecuon with owr audits of the consoiidated financial statements. we aiso have sudited
financial statement schedule VITI as of and for each of the vears 1n the three-vear period ended December 31, 1994. These
consobdsted financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibr.iv of the Company's mauagement. Our
responsibility 1s 10 express an opuuon on these consoiidated financial statements and financial statement schedule based on
our audis

We cond ucted our audits in accorasnce with generaliv accepted sudiing standards. Those standards requiced that we plan and
pertonT, an sudst 10 obtam reasonabie assurance sbout whether the financial statements are free of matenal mussiatement. An
audit yaciudes exsmuung, on & st basis, evidence supporung the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An sudit
also inciudes assessing the accounung principies used and significant esumates made bv management. as well as evaiusting
the overail financiai statement presentauon We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opiuon.

In our opion. the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairiv, 1o all matenal respects, the finsncal
posiuon of Southernt Pacific Transportauon Company and Subsidiary Compasues as of December 31, 1994 and 1993, and the
results of their operauons and thewr cash flows tor each of the vears in the three-vear penod ended Decernber 31, 1994
conformuty with generally accepted accounung principles. Also in our opiuon. the reiated financial statement schedule VIII,
as of and for each of the vears 1n the three-vear penod ended December 31, 1954, when considered in relauon to the basic
consoiidated financial statements taken ss & whole. presents fairlv, 1n all matenal respects. the informaton set forth therem.

As discussed 1n Note | 1o the consolidsted financial statements. the Company changed its methods of accounung for mcome
axes anag post-reurement denents other than pensions etfect:ve Januarv |, 1993

\s discussed in Note | to the consoudated financial statements. Southern Pacific Rail Corporaton ransierred ownersiup of
the Denver and Rio Grande Western Raulroad Companv w the Company effecuve October |, 1994 bv a conmbution to capaial.
The accompaiiving vonsolidated financial suatements have been restated to reflect the combined financial posiuon and resuits
of operauons and cash flows of the companses for all penods presented

KPMG PEAT MARWICK LLP

San Francisco. Californua
February 24, 1995




SOUTHERN PACIFIC TRANSFORTATION COMPANY
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANTE SHEETS
December 3.

1994 1993

n midiony) restated)

CURRENT ASSETS

Lash and cash equivalerts
\Ccounts receivaple. net ot allowance tor
$7.7 1n 1994 and $7 0 1n 1993 (Note 2
Notes rece;vable trom Ruo Uranae Receivaoies. inc. (Note 2
Other neies receivabie
Matenais and suppues. at cost
Other current assets

aouotul accounts or

Tolal current assets

PROPERTY, at cost (Notes 3. 5 9 and |2

{oadwav and structures
Raiiroaa equipment
(Other property
Total property
€8S accumulaied aepreciauon
Propertv, net

OTHER ASSETS AND DEFERRED CHARGES

avesunents in atfiliatea companues ' 17.0
Notes receivadie ana other mvestments 8 50 7
Notes receivable from Rio Grande necervaples. nc. ( Note 2 0.( 300
Other ad 90.7
Total other assets 1884

224880

TOTAL

Conunued)

S accompanving notes 1o consolidaten [inanciai statements




SOUTHERN PACIFIC TRANSPORTATION COMPANY
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (Conunved)

December 31,

1293

fimmilions)  (restated)

L S AND STCCKHOLDER'S EQU

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts and wages pavabie
Accrued pavabies

Taxes

[nterest

Vacaton pav
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 3)
Redeemable preterence shares ot a subsidiarv (Note 7)
Other current Liabiliues ( Note « )

Total current habihiues

LONG-TERM DEBT (Note 5)

DEFERRED INCOME TAXES (Note 6)
OTHER LIABILITIES (Notes 4 and 10)

REDEEMABLE PREFERENCE SHARES OF A SUBSIDIARY
Note 7)

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Notes 6. 9. 10 and 12)

STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY
Coinmon stock. without par vaiue: authonized 2.000 shares.
Issued and outstandung | 350 shares in 1994 and |.200 shares in
1993
Addiuonal paid-in capital (Note 8)
Retamned incorpe ( Note 7)
Advances to parent
Total stockholder's equty

TOTAL

See accompanving notes to consolidated financial statements




SOUTHERN PACIF C TRANSPORTATION .
AND SU 'SIDIARY COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
fin muillions)

Y ear Ended December 3

esiatea) restaied)

OPERATING REVENUES
Kailroag
'Lther

Total

OPERATING EXPENSES

<aillroad
~abor ana mnge oenetits ( Note |
Fuel
Matenais and suppiies
Cqupment rental
JJepreciauon ana amortzauen (Note 3

ther
Total raiiroad

1
N o0
J o U

(-

J R O

)
oo

'
>N BRI s W 00 L

'ther

Total

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

OTHER INCOME
'8INS [rom saies of propertv and reai estate (Note 3
<eal estate and other rentals. net
nterest tncome
ther income (expense). net ( Note
tal

INTEREST EXPENSE (Note 3

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAXES

INCOME TAXES (BENEFTIT) (Note 6
wrent
Deferreq
Total

NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF
CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING

CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING
FOR POST-EMPLOYMENT BENLFITS IN 1994 AND
POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN
PENSIONS IN 1993 (Net of income tax penelits

[ $3 8 and $64 3. respecuveiv) (Note |

NET INCOME (LOSS)

YEE accompanving notes 1o consolidated [hancial statements
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SOUTHERN PACIFIC TRANSPORTATION COMs . . .
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY
Years ended December 31. 1994, 1993 ana 1992
(in mullions)

Common Stock \dditionai

Number of
Shares ~ Amount

Balances at Decernber 31, 1991(restated) S 330 $].46 $(620.8) $1,599.5
Net income - : . 112.( - 112.0
Advances to parent . ‘ . - 33.3) 333

Balances at December 31, 1992 (restated) 24 S 330. 1971 634.1) 1,678.2
Net loss . ‘ ; - (193.0)
Dividend to Rio Granae Holding, Inc . . - (46.7)
Advances 10 parent . . . . 30.D (30.1)
Common stock 1ssued (Note 8) 2 E . - 4455
(Conmbuuon of capal - - . 2N

Baiances at December 31, 1993(restated) l ! 1684.2) 1,873.9
Net income . ; ‘ 2045 2045
Dividend to Rio Grande Holding, [nc . . 3318) . (53.8)
Advances 10 parent 34 9) (34.9)

Common stock 1ssued (Note 8) o : 2044 2944

Balances at December 31, 1994 L3 845 SLO901 $14882 S(Z191) $2284.1

See accompanving notes o consoiidated financial sialemnents




SOUTHERN PACIFIC TRANSPORTATION COMPANY
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in muilions)

993

restateal

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net wncome (loss)
Adiustments to net tncome { l0ss)
Depreciauon and amoruzation
Deferred income taxes
(ains from saies of propertv
Cumulauve etfect of change 1n accounung for
post-emplovment benetits in 1984 and post-
reurement benents in (993
_hanges n
Receivabies. net
Matenais and suppiies
Other current and non-current assets
Other current and non-current hiabihiues
[otal adjusuments
Net cash provided bv (used for) operaung
acuviues

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
(Capital expenditures J13
Propertv sold and retired 35.7
Change in notes receivable and other investments. net 1L L 1)
Net casn provided bv (used tor) invesung acuvities ity i I8% 5

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issuance of debt. net of costs >5 430.3
Debt and revolver drawdown (repavment). net 5 (433.0)
Advances 10 parent 346 30.1)
Dividends paid (Note 8) 5 46.7)
Proceeds from 1ssuance of common sLock. net of costs y 1455
Contribution of capital - 200
Redeemable preterence shares repavment . k)
Net cash provided by (used for) financing activiues : 1839

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - 0.7

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS-BEGINNING
OF THE YEAR 51 32.4

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS-END OF THE
YEAR L34 2l

See accompanving notes o consoiidated financiai statements
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SOUTHERN PACIFIC TRANSPORTATION COMPANY
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

‘wnership, Princioies of Consolidation and Basis of Presentanion - Southern Pacific Transportauon Compeny
is a whollv-ownea subsidiary of Southern Pacuic Rail Corporauon ("SPRC™). theretore. per share data are not
>nown 1n the accompanving consoiidated financial statements. As used in thus document. the Company refers to SPT
‘ogether with its subsidianes.  The consclidated financiai statements are prepared on the mstonical cost basis of accounting
ind include the accounts of SPT and all signuicant subsidiars mpames. inciuding St. Lowts Southwestern Raiiway

ompany ("SSW™), the Denver and Rio Grande Western Rauiroad Company (“D&RGW™ and SPCSL Corp. ("SPCSL",

Nl @ consolidated basis. All signuficant intercompany balances and transacuons have been eiiminated in consolidaton.
SPRC transterred ownerstup of D&RGW to SPT effecuve Gctober 1. 1994 by a contnbuuon o capital. T.ie consolidated.

“ancial stalements have been restated to retlect the comouned financial position and resuits of operauorns and cash flows
t the companues for ail penods presented

SPTY
ol

‘ash and Cash Equrvaients - For statement ot cash tlows purposes. the Company considers commercial paper,

Tiunicipal secunues and ceruficates ol deposit with ongiral maturizes when purcnased of three months or less to be cash
cquivalents

/nvestments - Investments n affiliated companues (those in which the Company has a 20 percent to 50 pervent

'WRETSIp interest) are accounted for by the equity metnod. Other mvestments are stated at cost which does not exceed
market

Propertv - Property accounung procedures followed by the (Company and its ravroad subsidianes are prescribed

W the [nterstate Commerce Cormmussion (' ICC™). In accoraance with the Company s defimuon of unut of property, all costs
£ SOCiated with the wistallation of rail. ues. baliast and other track improvements are capitalized. Other costs are capitalized
' e € aent thev increase asset values or extend userul lives. Reurements are generally recorded usiung a svstem-wide first-

L Urs(-out basis. The cost ol property ana equpment {inClucung removal and restorauon costs) 1s aepreciaied on the soaght
ine. composite Zroup method. generaliv based on esumated service iives. Pursuant o ICC regulalion. pernodic depreciation
410 COSt studies rre requirea and changes in service iife esumastes are subi=ct (o the review and approval of the I[CC. Guins
I losses Irom cuspos:uon of depreciabie rairoad operaung property are credited o charged ic accumnuiated depreciaton
eXeept for signuicant disposai of propertv. Certan raiiroad properues that are not essental to ransportaton operslions may

ne snid or heid for sale. Gawns or losses resulung from sales of reai estale no jonger requured for raliroad operations &re
recognized as other mcome in the consolidated statement of opersuons

Revenues - Freight revenues from raii transportauon opersuons are recognized based on the percentage of
-ompieted service method. Other rai'road revenues and other revenues are recogruzed as eamed

Reuree Welfare Benefits - Prior 10 Januarv | 1993 the Company expensed reuree weifare benefits when psad.
Effective Janvarv 1, 1993, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounung Standards No. 106, "Employers’
\ccounung for Post-retrement Benetits Other Than Pensions” and recorded the esumate of its Liability under Statement No.

)6 of §168.5 nuilion. mdxnaorummmarmummammeumngs of $104 2 muilion (see Note 10). Ststement
! Financial Accounung Standerds No. 106 requires that ali emplovers sponsoring a retiree welfare pian use s singie

Jctuanal cost method as 1s requured for pension plan accountng and that thev disclose specific informaton about their plan
n thewr nnancial statements




SOUTHERN PACIFIC TRANSPORTATION COMPANY
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Post-empiovment Benefits - In November 1992, the Financiai Accounung Standards Board ("FAS") issued
Slalement of Financial Accounung Standards No. 112 "Empiovers’ Accounung for Pos. -emplovment Benefits". FAS 112
fequires emplovers 10 recogmuze the 0oiigation (o provide benefits to former or nacuve emplovees afier emplovment but
betore reurement. if certain conditions are met. Effecuve januarv 1. 1994 the Companv adopted FAS 112 and recorded
4 $9 8 muilion pre-tax charge ($6 0 milion aner ax) The Companv's poiicv conunues to be to fund the cost of post-
emplovment benerts as the benetits are pavable

/ncome Taxes - The Companv records income taxes using the habilitv method prescribed bv Statement of Financial
\ccounting Standards No |(09. "Accounung tor income Taxes' Deferred income taxes are recogruzed for the tax
~onsequences of “temporarv differences’ bv appiving statutorv tax rates applic: ble to future vears to differences between
the financial statement carrving amounts and the tax bases of exisung assets and liabiliies

A change in the tax laws or rates resuits in adiustment to the deferred tax hiabiliues and assets. The effect of such
\drustments are included 1n income in the penod 1n wiuch the 1ax laws or rates are changeq.

SALE OF RECEIVABLES

Beminmung i 1989 the Company began selling certain net receivabies (inciuding interiine accounts), without
recourse. to Rio Grande Recevabies. inc. ("RGR™). a subsichary of SPRC Also in 1989, RGR began selling the receivables
purchasea from the Companv with certain limited recourse provisions, to ABS Commerciai Paper. Inc. ("ABS®), sn
unarfiliated thurd partv, on a ¢ /nunwng oasis for a period of up to five vears subject 10 cenain terms and conditions. The
Lompanv has agreed 1o serv :e the receivables sold and 1s paid a fee ior such services. The saie price tor the recesvables
*0ld 15 based upon the face amount of the receivables and 1s reduced bv discounts for expected defauits. servicing costs and
inucipated collecuon periods. The Company retains a residusl interest in the receivables should actuai collecuons exceed
‘he projected collections upon which the default discounts are caiculated

ABS finances 1ts purchases ov the saie of its commercial paper. secured bv the receivables it purchases. up 1o a
aximum aggregate princiba: amourdt of $300.0 muilion at any ume outstanding. The aoiiitv of ABS o seil commercaal
naper 1s supported bv cerain banks wnich have agreed to provide hiquidity 1o ABS on an as-needed basis. The hquadity
hanks must mawmiaumn & P-1 raung or there wouid need 10 be one or more replacement banks or a requction 1o the MaIERD
dmount of commercial paper which ABS couid i1ssue

As of Decemoer 31 1994 1993 and 1992. the Company had soid $454 3 rruliion. $391 7 mullion and $366.5
million of net outstanding receivables. respectiveiv. and had notes receivable from RGR for receivabies soid of $126.i
mullion. $84 6 mullion and $65.7 rmullion. of which $ 30.0 muilion were interest beanng at Decemoer 3!, | 994, and 1993,
respecuvely, and are inciuded 1n other assets. Inciuded 1n other mcome texpense), net, 1s approxamateiv $(54 0) mullion m
1994, $(42.0) muliton i 1993 and $¢31.1) nuilion n 1992 of discounts and other expenses associated with the saies of
iccounts recevable. The iuual term of the agreements expires on Uctober 3[. 1995 The Companv 1s currently in the
process of replacing the facuity wath another racility pnor to the eXpirauon gate

3. PROPERTY

The average deprecianon rates for the Company's propeny and equipment ranged from | 1o 5 percent for roadway
ind structures. 4 to 7 percent tor locomouves and 3 to 6 percent for treight cars tor | 994

The Companv received cash proceeds from saies and retrements ol reai estate and propertv ot $343 4 mullion,
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SOUTHERN PACIFIC TRANSPORTATION COMPANY
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

$35.7 muihion and $359.7 mullion in 1994. 1993 and 1992. respecuvelv. The 1994 amount inciudes proceeds of $235.0
fMulion 1or the sale of a ransit comndor (0 the ports of Los Angeles and Long Beacn (the 'Aiameda Corndor’) The 1992
amount inciudes $124.0 nuilion trom saies to the Perunsuia Corndor Jownt Powers Board ("JPB"). $45.0 mullion from sales
‘0 Metro Transit of Houston. Texas. $83.0 mullion trom saues to the Los Angeles Countv Transportation Commssion
LACTC™ and $36.5 muilion trom the saie/leaseback of locomouves and freight cars in June 1992. The Company recorded
cXpenditures of $13 muilion 1n 1994, $12 muilion 1n 1993 and $18 muilion 1 1992 1n costs relaung (o environmental

conaiuons on properues heid for sair

[he Company has granted the JPB opuons to purchase additionai nghts-ot-wav and land within tive vears after the
vlosing of the sale of the Perunsuia Mawn Line tor $110 mullion of which approximateiv $79 muilion has not lapsed, been
=Xercised or exunguished. The Company wiil retain exciusive treight nghts on the soid properues

'R OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

Other current liabiliues inciude the tollowing amounts

December 31,
1994 1993
n miions)
Reserves for casuaitv, freignt-reiated ciaims and other
current portion) $2254 $165.3
Accrued repaurs. equipment rentals and other pavabies 375.2 3972
Post-reurernent and post-empiovinent benetit obligauons 17.2 20.6
Reserve tor empilovee separauon and reiocauon ( current
poruon) LLS 2.0
Total 30293 2681

Inciuded in other non-current iiabilities are $322.0 mullion and $329 O rrullion for casualty and freighi-related
claims and $-0O-nuilion and $35.3 nuilion for empiovee separauon and relocauon at December 31, 1994 and 1993,

respecuvelv, in addition to $157 5 rruilion and $148 8 muilion for post-reurement and post-empiovment benetits other than
pensions at December 31. 1994 and 1993, respecuveiv
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SOUTHERN PACIFIC TRANSPORTATION COMPANY
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

th

LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt 1s summanzed as tollows (in milions)

December 31,
1994 1993

Equipment obiigauons (9 125-14.25%. due 1995 to 2007) $324.5 $380 4
Mortgage bonds (8.2%: due 1995 to 2001) 347 39.6
Credit agreement (vanous: due |996) - 125.0
Senuor secured notes ( 10.5%: due 1999) - 290.0
Other debt (4.0-6.0%. due 1995 10 2018) 93.0 88.1
Capialized lease obligauons (Note 8) 3328 75 5

Total 784 8 996.
Less current poruon 59.5) 66.7)

Total long-term . 253 39299

On March 2. 1994, SPRC clesed an offering of 25.000.000 shares of common stock for net proceeds of $503.6
mutlion. In connecuon with the toregong transacuon. the Company issued 1 50 shares of common stock to SPRC for total
vonsideraton of $294 4 muilion trom 1ts parent. Proceeds from thus transaction were used for repavment of the $175 million
vutstanding under the SPT Credit agreement (inciuding interest thereon) and for general corporate purposes.

In November [994. the Comparnv entered mnio a new $300 muilion three-vear revoiving credit agreement to replace
s exasung $200 mullion credit agreement. This agreement contans qQuarterly financiai covenants inciuding muumum tangible

net worth. a maamum funded debt to net worth ratio and a munumum fixed charge coverage rauo. No borrowings have been
nade unaer the new tacilitv

In December 1994. the Company entered into a bank agreement perrutung the Companv to borrow 1p to $150
muilion as a term joan manmng in 1999 The agreement contains quarteriv financial covenants 1denucal to those . ntamned

i the revoiving credit agreement.  Anv borrowing under the faciiity must be made bv Decembper 27. 1995 No bonu.~ags
have been made under this taciuity

[n December 1994. using proceeds trom the saie of the Alameda Corndor of $235 muilion. together with other
lunds on hand. the Company reured the $290 muliion outstanding under the Senior Secured Notes. The repavment was
accomphished bv placing approximateiv $297 mullior: of government secuniues 1n a defeasance trust in Dec~mber 1994. In
connection wiui the retwrement of the Semior Secured Notes. the Company wrote-off in other expenses $9.4 mullion of
unamortized debt 1ssuance costs and paid a prepavment premmuum of $5 8 muiiion and expensed 1n inierest expense $5.2
rmuilion afnibutable to the Company's interest rate SWap agreement.
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-ontractual matunues ot long-term debt (including capital jease obligauons) duning each of the five vears
ubsequent to 1994 and therearter are as follows 110 rmuilions)

1995 59.5
1996 530
1997 53.0
1998 15.6
1999 344
Therearter 519.3

Management esumates the tair vaiue of the Lomp:nv's debt at December 31. 1994 and 1993 was approximately
5783 muilion and $1.085 muilion. fespecuvely, based on wnterest rates for sumuiar 1ssues and financings

At December 31. 1994 the Company was a party to Inierest rate swap agreements for which it pays a varable rate -
M an aggregate nouonal amount of $100 muilion. whuch 1s used to hedge 1ts fixed interest rate exposure on certam debt
1Nd 1s accounted for as an adiusunent of interest expense over the lufe of the debt. The approximate expense (0 termumnste
the swap at Decemoer 31. 1994 was $4 muilion

\ Signuficant poruon of raiiroad equipment and certamn rilroad propertv 1s subject to liens secuning the mortgage bonds,
cqupment obiigauons or other debt

INCOME TAXES

The following summanzes income tax expense (benefit) for the vears indicated

Jear Ended December 31,

1993
n milbons)

Current
Federal
State
Total

Deferred
Federal
State
Total

Deferved tazes on cumulative effect of change in
accounting for post-empiovment benefits in 1994 and
post-retirement benefits other than pensions in 1993

Federal
State
Total deferred taxes on cumuiauve etfect
Total income tax expense (benetir)
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Deferred tax expense m 1993 inciudes $21.2 mllion reiated to the change 1n the federal tax rate. Total income tax
expense ( benenit) from conunwing operanons differed trom the smounts computed by appiving the statutorv Federal moome:
tax rate to income before mncome taxes as a resuit of the followng:

Statutorv rate ) 35.0% 34 0%
State income taxes (net of federal income tax

benefit) 4.3) 40
Cumulauve etfect of federal tax rate change (from

14% to 335%) . 186 -
Other. net {15 16

Effective rate 19.9% Q22% 396%

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to signuficant portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred
«ax habiliues are presented below (in mullions)

Deferred tax assets:
Accruais and reserves not deducted for tax purposes
unul pard 3 $ 3619
Net operaung ioss carrviorwards 501.9 546.7
Capital lease obligauon 135.7 36.2

Other L1( 1090
Total gross deferred tax assets 1343 1.LOS3 8

Deferved tax liabilities:
Differences in depreciauon and cost capuialization
methods (including deferred gains on property) (2,17 (1.994.7)
Other . ‘ —(190.5)
Total gross deferred tax liabilities S22 2.005.2)

Y
Net deferred tax liability $0.0384) £02314)

The Company has anatvzed the sources and expected reversal peniods of its deferred tax assets and lisbilities. The

ompeany believes that the tax benetits atmbutable 1o deducuble temporary differences and operaung loss carrviorwards will

Pe realized by the recogmuon of future taxable amounts reiated to taxable temporarv differences tor which deferred tax

1abiliues have been recorded Accordingiy, the Companv believes a valuauon allowance for its deferred tax assets is pot
necessary
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The former parent of the Companv has agreed to indemmiv SPRC. SPT and its subsidianes agamnst anv federal
income tax Labuity that mav oe imposed on the Companv or 1ts 80%-owned subsidianes for tax penods ending on or prior
10 Uctober 13. 1988 ("the Acquisiuon Date’). Years prior o 1984 are ciosed. SPRC agreea 10 pav or cause SPT and uts
subsidianes 10 pay o the former parent anv refund of federal income taxes atnibutable o the 80%-owned subsidisnes
recerved bv SPRC. SPT or its suosidianes arter the Acouisiuon Date for anv 1ax period ending on or prior 1o the Acqusinon
Date. Further. the former parent aiso agreea to inaemmuty SPRC. SPT and 1ts supsidianes. at ieast in part. tor state. locai
uid other taxes in respect of penods (o and including the Acquisiuon Date. but oruv to the extent that sucn taxes are due or
reporiable for penods prior to the Acquisiuon Date

The miercompany tax allocauon agreement between the Company and SPRC. which became etfecuve followmng
‘e closing of the Acquisiuon. was amended effecuve Januarv |, 1992. to provige that SPT and its subsidianes will pay o
SPRC the lesser of exther the amount equal to that wiuch the Company wouid have paid (or received) had the Company filed

4 separate consc. .ated tax return or which SPRC would pay as current taxes

SPRC's consoiidated federai income tax returns. 1n which the Compeanv 1s inciuded. for the period October 14,
1988 througn 1990, have been examuned and are currentiv bemns consideied by the Appeais Office of the internai Revenue
Service (“[RS") regarding vanious unagreed issues. SPRC's consolidsied Federal income tax returns are curreatly bemg
eNarmuned for the tax vears 1991 througn 1993 Management believes adequate provision has been made for any poiential
Javerse resuit

The [RS's audit of RGH's returns. in whuch D&RGW is included. for 1983 and the penod ended October 31, 1984,
ed 10 the 1ssuance ot a Nouce of Deficiency in October 1992 for 1980, 1983 and the period ended October 31, 1984. The
Juaut of the Anschutz Corporation (“TAC™), of which RGH and D&RGW were members from November i. 1984, through
Uctober 13. 1988, aiso ied to the 1ssuance of a Notice of Deficiency for the 1979 and 1982 vears as the result of the
Jdisallowance of net operaung ioss ("NOL") and investment tax credit carrvbacks from the Jjulv 31, 1985 through July 31,

87 penods. Both nouces have been peutioned 1o the United State Tax Court RGH does not expect a resoiution of these
-ases 1n (995 RGH's taxabie penods trom Jjuiv | 1987 through October | 3. 1988 inciuded in the consoiidated returns
't TAC are currenuv under IRS auait as part of the TAC audit. However. management believes adeguate reserves have been
nroviaed 1o cover anv anucipated deficiencies [or these tax vears

As of December 31. 1994, the Companv had approxamateiv $1.2 billion of NOLSs that will expure 1n 2003 through
-008 The NOLs are subject to review and possibie disaliowance. in whoie or in part. by the [RS upon audit of the Federal
income tax returns of the Company.

Section 382 of the Internai Revenue Code of 1986. as amended. lumuts a corporaton s uulizauon of its NOLs when
+eraimn changes in the ownerstup of the « yrporauon s stock occur withun a three-vear period. Such a change has occurved
with respect to SPRC and therefore the Company will be permutied to deduct & lumited amount of its NOLs 11 each taxabie
‘ear, commencing with the vear enaung Decemoer 31, 1994 The Company currentiv does not expect. however, that the
‘mutation imposed under Sectoon 382 will have & matenal adverse umpact on the Companv's abuity to uuize its NOLs pnaor
‘0 thewr expurauon.  Nevertheless, the limitaton couid under certamn circumstances delav the Companv's utilization of its
NOLs ana theret increase the current portion of the Companv's Federal income taxes. Further. the lumitauon under cenam
circumstances could also cause a poruon of the Companv's NOLs to expire unuulized. .
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REDEEMABLE PREFERENCE SHARES OF A SUBSIDIARY

SSW. 2 99.9%-owned subsidiarv of SPT. ongnalv issued $53 .5 muliion ($48.5 million Senes A and $5.0 million
Senes B) of SSW's non-voung redeemable preterence shares. The current carrving amount on the baiance sheets at
December 31. 1994 and 1993 retlects the Outstanaing balances of the reacemable preterence shares ot $44.2 million and
$46.0 mullion, respecuveiy

The Sertes A shares are subyect 1o mandatory redempuon at face vaiue over a 20-vear period commencing 1o 1991,
At which ume mandatory dividends shall be declared and paud over the same period. The overall effecuve interest rate since
the date of i1ssue 1s approximatelv 2.0%. The Senes B shares are subject to mandatorv redempuon at face vaiue over a | 5-
vear penod conunencing in 1989 Mandatorv dividends shall be deciared and paid over & |0-vear penod commencing m
1994 The overall effective interest rate since the date of 1ssue is approximateiy 4 9%

Mandatory redempuons and mandatory dividends ot Senes A and S.nies B shares scheduled for pavment during
¢ac.i of the five years subsequent to 1994 are $4.2 mullion per vear.

The Senes A and Senes B shares restrict certain dividend pavments bv SSW to 1ts common and preferred
shareholders. Under these provisions, at December 3 | . 1994, $53.2 muilion of SSW's histoncai cost basis retained DO
\vas not restnicted. No esumate of the fair vajue of the preierence shares was made by the Company

CAPITAL AND DEBT TRANSACTIONS

In August 1993 and March 1994 SPRC closed the offering and sale o1 30.783.750 shares and 25.000.000 shares
'l common stock. respecuvely. In connecuon with these otfenings, the Companv 1ssued 200 shares of common stock 1o 1993
:nd 150 shares of common stock in {994 for consideration of $445 5 muilion and $294 4 muilion trom SPRC. respecavely.
Proceeds from these ransacuons were used to repav debt. purchase equipment operated pursuant to operaung leases s
for generai corporate purposes ——

In 1993 and 1994, D&RGW paud dividends of $46.7 mulhon and $53 8 mullion to RGH. respecuveiy
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9. LEASES

The Companv |eases certain mreignt cars. locomouves. data processing equipment ana other property. Future
muumum lease pavments unaer noncanceilabie ieases as of Decemper 31, 1994 are summanzed as tollows (1n mullions):

Caputal Operaung
Leases Leases

Year ended December 31,
1995 $152.7
1996 140.2
1997 10.9 130.3
1998 121.8
1999 5.7 106.5
Therearier 303.9 3494
Total mummum pavments $L0002

Less amount represenung interest (at rates
ranging trom 7 2% to 13 1%%)
Present value of mimumum iease pavments

Rental expense tor noncanceilable operaung icases with terms over one vear was $168 7 rmullion. $156.5 million
ind $117.6 nuilion for the vears ended December 31. 1994, 1993 and 1992 respectivelv. Conungent reniais and sublease
entals were not sigmuficant

n late 1993 and 1994 as part of a program to upgrade its locomotuve tleet. the Companv acqured 150 new
ocomouves, |7 of wiuch were deliverea in the iast quarter of |993 with the balance delivered i 1994 Additonally, the
ompanyv acquired 133 remanutactured iocomouves of which |15 were delivered in 1994 and the balance carty 1995.
These locomotives were linanced bv capial leases (for which the totai capialized lease obligauon in 1994 was
spproxamatelv $22 1 muilion).  The Company scquired through capual lease financing approximatety | 400 freigt cars (700
1ewlv manwactured and 700 retnanutactured) for whuch the total capitalized iease obligauon n 1994 was spproxumately
$56 muilion. The Company aiso received approximateiv | 600 additionai reconditioned freight cars in 1994 on which it
“XPecis 10 compiete capital lease onancing in 1995 In addition. the Company acquired 350 used freight cars in | 994 under
peraung leases

The Commpany has ordered an additional 206 AC powered locomouves to be financed by capitalized |ease financang

‘hat are scheduled 10 be delivered during the second and thurd quarters of 1995 In addition. the Companv has ordered 920

new hopper cars and expects (o receive approxumatelv | 500 reconditioned freight cars in 1995, The Company expects 0

finance these acquisiuons thougn capitalized lease financing.  The total expected capilalized ease obligauon to be incurred

n 1995, inciuding the |.600 recondiuoned freight cars received in 1994 for which financing 1s scheduled to be arranged in
995. 1s approximateiv $400 muilion

in 1984 the Companv entered into a iong-ierm lease agreement with the ports of Los Angeies and Long Besch
ciaung (o the Companv's Intermodal Contaner Transter Facuitv (the "Facility”)  Under the terms of the lease, the Compsay
) ODligaied 10 make CeTlam future muumMum iease pavments and is subject to addiuonal conungent rentals wiuch are based
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on the annual volume of container moverent at the Factlitv. The mumimum lease pavments. ranzing from approximatety
$3.9 rmuikion to $4.5 muihion tor 1995 and 1996. respectiveiv, are included in the table above. However. for each five-vesr
period from 1987 througn 2036. the amount of the annual mumumum lease pavments and conungent rentals will be
deterTuned bv the ports hased on independent appraisals of the fair rental vaiue of the property and. therefore, no amosass
are included 1n U\e zoove table for such vears. The 1994 expense was $7.6 muilion

The Company leases operaung nights on track owned bv otner raiiroads and shares costs of ransportation facilitizs
and operations with other rauroads. These inciude nghts on Union Pacific lines betwee . Kansas Citv and St. Lows snd cn
Burlington Northern Railroad Company lines between Kansas Citv and Chicago. The Company has the nght to termunate
ts usage with certain nouce periods. Net rent expense for trackage rights was $6.4 mllion in 1994. $1.9 mullion i 1993
ind $13.0 muilion 1n 1992. The 1993 amount in-indes the benefit of the negouated settiement of a jount facility case of
approxumateiv $10 mullion

The Companv pavs for the use of transportation equpment owned bv others and receives mcome from others for
the use of 1ts equipment. [t 2lso shares the cost of other transportation facilities with other raiiroads. Rental expense and
income from equpment and the operauon of jount faciiues are inciuded 1n operaung expenses on a net basis. Total net
¢quipment lease, rent and car hire expense was $331 ruilion. $341 muilion and $301 mullion for 1994, 1993 and 1992,
respecuvelv

10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AND COMPENSATION PLANS

Pension Plan. The Company 1s & parucipaung empiover under the SPRC Pension Plan (the "SPRC Pension Plan®).
'he SPRC Pension Plar: is a defined benetit noncontnbutorv pension pian covenng primariiv empiovees not covered by a
collecuve bargaiing agreement. The SPRC Pension Plan 1s subject to the provisions of the Empiovee Retirement Income
security Act of 1974 ("ERISA™) Pension penerits for normal retirement are caiculated under a tormula which utilizes
iverage compensauon. vears of benefit service and Railroad Retirement and Sociai Secuntv pay ieveis The Compenv's
funding policy is to conmbute each vear an amount not less than the mumumum required contnibution under ERISA nor
Jreater than the maxamum tax deductble contribution. The assets ol the SPRC Pension Plan consist of a vanety of
nvesumen's inciuding U.S. Government and agencv secuniues. corporate stocks and bonds and monev market funds.
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The following summanzes the components the Companv's net peniodic pension cost under the provisions of
>tatemen: of Financiai Accounung Stanaaras No. 87. “Empiovers Accounung tor Pensions (in muiiions)

et 285 Ended December3l,
1992

£

SErvice costs - benetits covered during the vear
interest cost on projected benetit obligaton
Actual (return Vloss on pian assets

Net amoruzaton and deferrai

e

& W
- Wwn

e B N

6.1
27

Net penodic pension cost .

k|

[he following summanzes the funded status and amounts recognized 1n the Companv's consolidated balance sheets
ior the SPRC Pension Plan (1n mullions):

Actuanal present value of benetit obligauons
Vested benefits
Non-vested benefits

Accumulated benetit obligauion

Projected benetit obiigauon
Faur value or assets in pian
Projected benetit obligauon 1n excess of plan assets
! nrecognized transition amount
Unrecogmized gain or ioss
Unrecognized prior service cost
Net pension Liabilitv inciuded in the balsnce sheet

['he tollowing summanzes the significant assumpuons used in accounung for the SPRC Pension Plan:

December 31,
1994 1993 1992
Weighted average discount rate T 8.0%
Expected rate of increase: in future compensation
leveis 5 0% 6.0%
Weignted average expected long-ierm rate of return on
plan assets ) 0% 9.0%
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Thrift Plan. SPRC has established a defined contribution plan (the "SPRC Thnft Plan") as an individual account
3aVIngs anc investment plan pnmaniv for empiovees of SPRC who are not subtect to a coilective bargaimng agresment.
Eligible parucipants mav contribute a percentage of thewr compensauon and the Company aiso contributes using & formuis
based on parucipant coutributions

Post-renirement Benefits Other Than Pensions. The C ompany sponsors several pians which provide healtk care
and life insurance benefits 10 reurees who have met age and service requirements. | he contribution rates that are pad by
reurees are adjusted annuallv to offset increases in health care costs. if anv. and fix the amounts pavabie by the Compaxy.
The life msurance pians provide life insurance benetits for certam reurees The amount of life insurance 1s dependent upon
ength of service. empiovment dates ana severai other tactors and increases in coverage bevond certamn muumurn levels are
borne bv the empiovee. Prior to Januarv |, 1993. the Companv's policy was 1o expense and fund the cost of all retiree weifare
ENEIILs only as the benelits were pavacie

The Companv adopted FAS No. 106. “Emniovers Accounung for Post-retirement Benerits Other Than Pensions®,
etfecuve Januarv |, 1993 The etfect of adopung FAS No. 106 on net income and the net periodic benefit cost (expense) for
1993 was a charge to earmings ot $168.5 muilion (iess income taxes of $64 3 mullion). The Companv s policv continues to
oe to tund the cost of all reuree welifare benetits oniv as the benetits are pavable. Accordingly, there are no pian assets.

The following tabie summa:1zes the pian's accumulated post-retrement benefit obligauon i in m:ilions):

December 31,
1994 1993

Life Henith Life
insarance Total Care [nsarance Totmd

Reurees £92.0 $472 $107.7 $1549
Fullv ehgble plan parucipants s S & 14 C 109 B _186
‘\ccumnulated post-retirement benetit

)oligauon ' $97.4 $147 1 58,1 $173.5

nrecognized net gain ({0ss) 3 (8.4)

’lan amenament | e . §
Accrued post-reurement benetit cost

included 1n other iiabiiiues § §1694

As of December 31. 1994 and 1993. the current poruon of accrued post-reurement benetit cost was approxunstely

$16.3 muilion and $20.6 mullion. respecuvelv, and the iong-term portion was approxumatelv $148.6 muilion and $148.8
Tulion. respecuvely

The net penodic posi-retirement benefit costs inciude the following components (in milions)

1994

Service cost $08
Interest cost 12.0
Amortizauon of plan amendment 02)
Net penodic post-retirement benetfit cost $12.6

For measurement purposes. the Companv has not assurn<a an annual rate of increase 1n the per capita cost of coversd
benetits for future vears smce the Company has lumuted its furure contributions to current ievels. The weighted average

0489




SOUTHERN PACIFIC TRANSPORTATION COMPANY
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Jiscount rate used 1n deternung the benefit obligauon was 8.5 percent

rost-empiovmeni Senents. In Novemoer 1992, the FAS 1ssued Statement No. | 12 "Empiovers' Accountng for
Post-empiovment Beneits" FAS 112 requires empiovers to recognuze the obiigation 1o provide benetits to former or macuve
-MPpiOvees aller smpiovment but betore reurement. it certain conaiuons are met. Effecuve Januarv . 1994, the Company
Jaopted FAS 112 ana recoroed a $9 8 muiiion pre-tax charge ($6.0 muliion arter tax). The Company s poiicv conunues to be
0 Iund the cost o post-empiovment benelits as e benents are pavaoie

/990-1994 Long-Term Earmings Growth Incentve Pian and Annual incentive Compensauon Plans. Certam
ihicers of the Company were covered bv the 1990-1994 Long- Term Earmings Growth Incenuve Plan of the Compeny. The
1992 ana 1993 Annuai Incenuve Compensauon Plans covered ail exempt empiovees of the Comparv. Based on the
Provisions of these pians. no amounts were paid or charged (o expense i (994, 1993 or 1992

Equuty Incentrve Plan. The SPRC Compensanon Commutiee has authonzed a grant of stock bonuses under SPRC's
quity Incenuve Plan covering up 1o 1,555,000 shares of SPRC Common Stock. 1n the aggregate. (10 28 key executive
~mplovees of the Company. conungent upon the artainment of certamn pre-established corporate financiai and individuai
pertormance objecuves. A poruon of each stock bonus grant 1s subject to the achievement of an operaung rauo for SPRC
1895 for 1994. 88.0 for 1995. 85.0 for 1996. or 83 0 for 1997. -+ well as individual pertormance obiecuves during those
same vears. Lf the required SPRC operaung rauo for anv Vvr.ar 1s not achueved. or if the required individual performance
'brectives are not achueved. the SPRC Compensauon Commuttee of the Board of Directors mav in 1ts discretion sward a
portion of such shares. [n 1994, the Company charged to expense approximateiv $7.5 milion represenung the vatue of
approxamately 413.000 shares which were awarded in Januarv 1995 pursuant to the Equutv incenuve Plan

1L RELATED PARTIES

"he Companv has maintained separate accountability for the operaung acuvities of its principai raiiroad subsidianes
{5 10 he snanng ol Ireight revenues and charges for use of raiiroad equipment and joint taciiiues. [nteriine scoounts
2cervable ana pavabie conunue (o be settled througn the tradiionai clearing process between raiiroads. The raroads are
-ooraunaung and. where appropnate. consolidaing the marxeung, aaministralon. ransportauon and MAINISTANCE Operstons
't the raiiroads BN

The Companv paid $1.3 muilion. $6.8 muilion and $4.2 muilion 1n 1994, 1993, [992. respecuvely, to SP
Environmental Svstems. Inc. ("SPES"), a whollv-owned subsidiarv of SPRC. for protessional services regardmg
environmental matters, exciuding services provided bv thud parues billed through SPES

Subsidianes of Anschutz Companv perform specific services for the Companv. prnmaniv relaung to the purchase
4nd admurustranon of locomouve fuel and fuel futures contracts and fiber opuc telecommunications. The amount pad by the
-ompany 1n 1994 for these transacuons was $7.9 mullion. The Companv believes that the terms of the transsctions are
comparable to those that couid be obtained from unatiiliated parues

12 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Companv 1s dependent upon its raii operations and reai estate acuvities to meet its debt obligations, to make
pavments [0 buv-out surplus emplovees, (0 make capital expenditures and to pay dividends or make advances o SPRC in
order for SPRC to make pnincipal and interest pavments reiaung to the $375 rmuilion 9-3/8% ‘scxuor Notes due 2005. The
vanous aebt agreements of the Company contan restncuons as to pavment of dividends to SPRC. The C ompany is permutied
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'o make advances or dividends to 1ts parent in order for certain specified interest to be paid bv 1ts parent.

OUn November 4. 1993. the Company and Integrated Svstems Solutions orporauon ("ISSC"), a subsidiary of [BM,

entered into a ten-vear agreement under which ISSC will handle all of the Companv's management informaton seryoes

MIS") funcuons. These inciude svsiems operauons, appiicauon development and impiementation of a disaster recovex ¥

plan. Pursusnt to the agreement. the Company 1s obligated to pav annuai base charges of between $45 mullion and $50 muilon

which covers. among other thmgs, payments tor MIS equipment and personnel) over a ten-vear period subject to adjustments
for cost of living increases and vanauons in the levels of service provided under the agreement.

[nherent 1n the operauons of the transportaton and real estate business 1s the possibility that there may sxst
environmental condiuons as a resuit of current and past operauons which mught be 1n violatuon of vanous federal and state
laws reiaung o the protecton of the environment. [n cernam instances. the Company has received nouces of asseried violaton

'f such laws and reguations and has take=n or plans to take steps 0 address the problems cited or to contest the sllegstions
of violanon The Companv has recorded reserves 10 provide for environmental costs on certam operating and non-opersting
properues. Environmental costs mciude site remedistion and restoration on a site-bv-site basis, as well as costs for mitisl site
survevs and environmental studies ot potenuallv contamunated sites. The Company has made and will conunue 1o make
substannal expenditures relatmg (0 environmental condiions on its propertes, inciuding properues held for saie. In assssmung
its potential environmental hiabiliues, the Company typicallv causes on-gomng examinatuons of newly identified sites and
evaluations of exisung ciean-up efforts to be pertorined bv environmental engineers. These assessments which usnally
consider a combmanaon of factors such as the engineering reports, site Visits, ares mvestigatons and ol er sieps, are reviewed
penodicaliv bv coumsel. Due to uncertmunues as to vanous 1ssues such as the required level of remeciation and the exvens of
parucipauon m clean-up efforts by others. the Companv's total clean-up costs for environmental matters cannot be predicted
with certamntv. The Company has accrued reserves for environmental matiers with respect to operstng and non-opersting
properues not heid for saie. as well as cenain properues previousiv soid, based on the costs esumated to be incurred when
such esumaled &mOUnIs (Of &l least 8 mimmum emount) can be reasonably determined based on informauon avaiable. Durmg
the vears ended December 31. 1994, 1993 and 1992. the Company recognuized expenses of $15.4 muilion. $11.8 mllion and
$8.0 muilion. respectivelv. reiated to environmentai matters. At Decembper 31. 1994 and 1993 the Company had accrued
reserves 1or envirorumental contngencies of $65.0 muil.on and $61.7 nullion. respecuvely, which inciudes $13.2 pullion and
$16.5 nuilion. respecuveiv. in current babiiues. These reserves relate to estumated liabilitues for operaung and non-operatmg
properues not held for saie ana certam properues previousiv sold and were exciusive ot anv significant future recovenes from
insurance carriers. Based on the Company's assessments described above. other available information and the amouges of
the Company's established reserves. management does not beiieve that disposition of environmental matters known to the
Company will have & material adverse etfect on the Company's financial positon. However. there can be no assurance that
matenal L:abiliues or costs related to environmental matters wiil not be incurred i the future

A substanual poruon of the Company s raliroad empiovees are covered by collecuve bargaining agreements with
natuonal rauwav labor organizeuons that are orgamuzed along craft lines. These agreements are generallv negotiated on &
mulu-empiover basis with the rairoad industrv represented by 8 bargaiung commuttee. The culmunauon of vancus
Presidenual and legasistive events in 1992 resuited in the Company negouating most of its labor agreements separately.
Certamn of the wage agreements obta.ned in 1991, 1992 and 1993 have reduced the effects of inflation on operating costs but
provide for cost of Living increases beginung n 1995, A substanual number of the Jabor agreements expire and are subject
!0 renegouauon 1995

To ensure stabilitv of its fuel costs, the Company has entered into fuel hedgzing agreements covenng approximstely
'5% of 1ts 1995 esumated fuel needs at an saverage purchase price of $.49 per gallon (exciuding handling costs). However,
n the eveni that fuel prices deciine beiow the average purchase price under the hedging agreements. the Compaay will uot
receive anv benefit from these fuel hedging agreements and mav in fact pav more for fuel than it would have paid in the
Jdosence Ol such agreemerits




SOUTHERN PACIFIC TRANSPORTATION COMPANY
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

AS a condiuon 10 1ts approvai of the consoidaton of Union Pacific. Missoun Pacific Raiiroaa Companv ("MP") and
Western Pacific Railroad Companv in 1982. the ICC awarded SSW trackage nghts to operate over the MP lines between
Nansas Citv and St. Lows. The iCC's iuuai decision aid not fix the compensauon SSW wouid payv 1or the trackage ngits,
which commenced in Januarv | 983 Atter a senes of heanngs. the ICC set forth new principies 10 govern the computation
of charges. Umon Pacific has asserted a ciaim tor addiuonal amounts due agamnst the Companv ot approximateiv $63 mullion
inciuding mnterest) as of Decemoer 31. 1994 and filed a coilecuon acuon in Federal Distnct Court.  [n eariv 1995, the court
issued an order finding that the Company owes Union Pacific the amount of $60.99 muilion as of Januarv 31. 1995 pius
idditionai accrued amounts occurming since that date. but allowing the Company to pursue a counterciaum for losses due to
illeged discrimunauon against the Company's tramns using the 1ot facility. The Companv and Uruon Pacific have agreed
n princinie concernung settiement of the hugauon. Whether or not tinal agreement to settle on the proposed terms 1is reached.
the Companv s pavment to Unuon Pacitic will be supstanual. Management has made adequaie provision for this matter m
current habiiiues in 1ts financiai statements.

[n Julv 1991. a deratiment occurred near Dunsmuur. Califorma. While certain aspects of the matter have not been
resolved and the total amount of damaces and reiated costs cannot be determuned at thus ume. SPT s insured agamnst most
(vDes ol damages and reiated costs invoived with the Dunsmuir deraiiment (o the extent that thev exceed $10 muilion. As of
Decemper 31. 1994. SPT has paid approximateiv $46 8 muilion reiated 1o the Dunsmuir deratiment, of which $12 muilicn
\vas charged to expense prumaniy to cover the $10 muilion deducuble. The balance has been or is in the process of being
collected trom insurance camers. As of Decemoer 31. 1994, approximateiv $31 9 muilion has been recovered bv SPT from
msurers. SPT expects to recover st bstanuallv ail addinonai damages and costs under its insurance poiicies. As & result,
Jisposiuon of these matlers 1s not expected to have a matenai adverse etfect on the Companv s financiai condition.

Although the Companv has purcnased wnsurance. the Companv has retained certain nsks with respect to losses for
hurd-partv hiability and propertv ciaims. [n addition. vanious claims. lawsuits and conungent hiabiliues are pending sgamst
the Companv. Management has made provisions for these matters which 1t believes to be adequate. As a result. the ulumate
Jisposiuon of these MaeTs 1s not expected to have a matenal adverse etfect on the Companv s consolidated financial position.

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW iNFORMATION

Decembey 31,
1993
nmiiions)

Cash pavments (refunds)
[nter=st
[ncome taxes
Non-cash transacuons
Sales of real estate tor notes receivabie
Capital iease obligauons for raiiroad equpment




SOUTHERN PACIFIC TRANSPORTATION COMPANY
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

RESTATED QUARTERLY DATA (UNAUDITED)

Second Third Fomwth -
Quarter  Quarter  Qumrer

(1m millions)
1994
Operaung revenues $742.1 $801.7 $801.5 $775.0
Operaung mncome 345 75.5 65.9 55.7
Other income (expense) 2.9 9.9 (3.2) 227.0@

Net income (loss)* (45.9) 50.2 30.0 170.2@
1993

Operaung revenues $671.9 $£7409 £748.5 $7374
Operaung income (loss) (11.9) 41.2 (32.1) (4.0)
Other income texpense) 6.2 (0.4) (17.9) 232

Net income (loss)® (119.6) 2.1)  (69.0) 23)

First quarter 1994 data inciudes an extraordwnarv charge of $6.0 muilion (net of taxes) for the change n accounting for
post-empioyment benefits (FAS 112)

First quanter 1993 data inciudes an extraordinary charge of $104.2 mullion (net of taxes) for the change 1 accounging
for post-reurement benefits other than pensions (FAS 106).

Fourth quarter 1994 data inciudes a pre-tax gain of approxumately $227 rmuilion cn the sale of the Alameds Corrider.




SOUTHERN PACIFIC TRANSPORTATION COMPANY
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

IS. HISTORICAL STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Effecuve October 1. 1994. the stock of D&RGW was contmbuted to the Companv. The histoncai resuits of operations
t SPT and 1its subsicianes inciuding D&RGW commencing October |. 1994 are as foliows 1or the vears ended December
1994, 1993, ana 1992

1994 1993 . N
inmiiuons)

Uperaung Revenues $2.825.0 $2.550.7 $25238
'peraung txpense 26444 2.604 6 25485
Operating income (Loss) 1806 53.9) (24D
Ither Income 2390 86 o - 3 ]
Interest Expense 1159 101.5 Lol
income (Loss) Before income Taxes 303.7 146.8) E v 5
income Tax (Benefit) 120.9 40.9) 68.7

Net Income (Loss) Before Cumuiauve Effect of Change 1n

\ccountng 182.8 105.9) 109.5
umulatuve Effect ot Change in Accounung 10) 9k 9)

{et Income (Loss) $ 1788 $2048) S _109S5
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SOUTHERN PACIFIC TRANSPORTATION COMPANY
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

SCHEDULE VIIL VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS AND RESERVES

Baisscs as
Begtening
of Year

Year Ended December 31, 1994
Casualty and other clams ; : $146 8 $102.8
Post-reurement and post-empiovment benefit
obligations . : 23.2 17.9
Emploves separauon and relocauon and other R 488
Total - $1700 51695

Year Ended December 31, 1993 (restated)
Casuaity and other claims
Post-returement benefit obligauon .
Employee separaton and relocauon and other
Total .

Year Ended December 31, 1992 (restated)
Casuaity and other claims
Emplovee separauon and relocanon and other

Total .







SOUTHERN PACIFIC TRANSPORTATION COMPANY SUBSIDIARIES

ukansas & Memphus Railwav Bndge and Termunai Company
The Denver and Rio Grande Western Rairoad Company
Pacific Motor Transport Company
St. Lowis Southwestern Raiiwav Company
Southern Pacific Asset Management Company
Southern Pacific Equpment Company
Southern Pacific Internauonai. [nc
Southern Pacific Manine Transport. Inc
Southern Pacufic Mexico, S. A. de C.
Southern Pacific Motor Trucking Company
Southern Pacific Warehouse Companv
SPCSL Corp
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Southern Pacific Rail Corporation

Southern Pacific Building « One Market Plaza « San Francisco, California 94105
August 9, 1995

Dear Stockholder

I am very pleased to inform vou that on August 3, 1995 Southern Pacific Rail Corporation (**Southern
Pacific’”). Union Pacific Corporation (‘‘Union Pacific’’), Union Pacific Railroad Company (“‘UPRR""), an
indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Union Pacific. and UP Acquisition Corporation (the *‘Purchaser’’). a wholly
owned subsidiary of UPRR, entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the ‘‘Merger Agreement’
providing for the merger of Southern Pacific with UPRR (the *‘Merger'’). As a first step in the transaction. the
Purchaser will commence a tender offer (the **Offer’’) to purchase up to 39,034.471 shares of Southern Pacific's
common stock (the **SP Shares™") (constituting 25% of the outstanding SP Shares) at a price of $25.00 per share
in cash (“'Offer Price’”). After stockholder approval and the receipt of a favorable decision by the Interstate
Commerce Commission (**ICC™") granting approval, exemption or other authority therefor, Southern Pacific will
be nierged into UPRR

As a result of the merger, each SP Share will be converted into the right to receive, in accordance with an
election to be filed by each stockholder. either (i) the right to receive $25.00 per share in cash or (ii) .4065 shares
of Union Pacific common stock. par value $2.50 per share (the *UP Stock’" and together with such cash received
pursuant to the Merger. **Merger Consideration’’), or a combination thereof. As explained in the enclosed Offer
to Purchase. the Merger Agreement imposes a limit on the total number of SP Shares that can be converted into
the right w receive cash or UP Stock pursuant to the Merger. Specifically regardless of the number of
stockholders who elect to receive cash or UP Stock. as the case may be, the number of SP Shares converted into
the nght to receiv» cash in the Merger (together with the number of SP Shares purchased 1n the Offer) and UP
Stock will equal as nearly as practicable 40% and 60%. respectively. of ali outstanding SP Shares. Accordingly,
In the case of any particular stockholder. depending upon the number of SP Shares for which such holder has
elected to receive cash or UP Stock. as the case may be. such stockholder may not necessarily receive in respect
of his or her SP Shares. the amount of cash. UP Stock or the combination thereof that such stockhoider requested
in his or her election. The Offer to Purchase describes the procedures under the Merger Agreement that will be
used in the event proration with respect to either form of Merger Consideration becomes necessary. Stockheldess

are encouragec 0 read the Offer to Purchase carefully and in its entirety

As more fully described in the enclosed Schedule 14D-9. vour Board of Directors has unanmmously
approved the Offer and the Merger Agreement and recommends that those stockholders w ho desire to receive
cash in connection with the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement (the **Transactions'’) accept

the Oftfer and tender their SP Shares

In deciding whether to tender SP Shares in the Offer. your Board believes that you should take the following

tactors into account

Stockholders who tender their SP Shares will have an opportunity to receive a premium over the
price at which the SP Shares were trading on the NYSE prior to the anncuncement of the Transactions for
25% or more of their SP Shares prior to action on the Merger by the ICC. Because the ICC is not expected
to make a ruling with respact to the Merger until sometime in 1996, stockholders who tender their SP Shares
will be able to receive the Offer Price substantially sooner then they will receive the Merger Consideration
In addition, although Southern Pacific believes that the ICC will approve the Merger. no assurances can be
given that such approval will be obtained, and stockholders who do not tender their SP Shares in the Offer
will bear the risk relating to ICC approval with respect to all of their SP Shares rather than availing
themselves of the opportunity to eliminate that nisk with respect to at least 25% of their SP Shares
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(1) Stockholders who tender their SP Shares in the Offer may receive less UP Stock than they would
if they were not to tender their SP Shares. and as a result they may have a lesser ownership inizrest in the
combined company. However, because UP Stock will constitute no more than 60% of the overall
consideration, stockholders who decide not to tender SP Shares in the Offer because they wish to receive 4
greater number of shares of UP Stock for their SP Shares nevertheless may be required to receive some
cash pursuant to the Merger

(ii1) As more fully described in the enclosed Offer to Purchase. the sale of SP Shares in the Offer, as
well as the receipt of cash. will be subject to current federal income tax, while the receipt of UP Stock will
not be subject to current federal income tax. Stockholders should take this difference 1n U.S. federal income
tax treatment into account in deciding whether to tender their SP Shares.

Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated (“‘Morgan Stanley'’). financial advisor to Southern Pacific in
connection with the Offer and the Merger, has rendered to the Board an opimon that the consideration to be
recerved by the stockholders pursuant to the Offer and the Merger, taken together. is fair from a financial point
of view to the stockholders. A copy of the Morgan Stanley Fairness Opinion is attached © the Schedule i4D-9
as Exhibit 8. Stockholders are urged to read the Fairness Opinion carefully and in its entirety.

The enclosed Offer to Purchase sets forth ali of the terms of the Offer Additionally, the enclosed Schedule
14D-9 sets forth certain additional information regarding the Transactions relevant to making an informed
decision as well as the recommendation of your Board recommending participation in the Offer for those
stockholders who desire to receive cash in connection with the Transactions. Please read both documents
carefully and in their entirety

Very truly yours.

” -
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JERRY R. Davis
President and Chief
Executive Officer




SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

SCHEDULE 14D-9

Solic’tation/Recommendation Statement Pursuant to
Se~tion 14(d)(4) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

SOUTHERN PACIFIC RAIL CORPORATION

(Name of Subject Company)

Southern Pacific Rail Corporation

(Name of Person(s) Filing Statement)

Common Stock, par value $.001 per share
(Title of Class of Securities)

843584

(CUSIP Number of Class of Securities)

Southern Pacific Rail Corporation
One Market Plaza
San Francisco, CA 94105
Attention: Cannon Y. Harvey, Esq.
(415) 541-1000
(Name, Address and Teleph .ne Number of Person Authorized to
Receive Notices and Communications on Behalf of
the Person(s) Filing Statement)

With cepies 1o

Joseph W. Morrisey, Jr., Esq. Peter D. Lyons, Esg.
Holme Roberts & Owen LL.C Shearman & Sterling
1700 Lincoln—Suite 4100 599 Lexington Avenue
Denver, Colorado 80203 New York, NY 10022




Item 1. Security and Subject Company

The name of the subject company is Southern Pacific Rail Corporation, a Delaware corporation (the
“Company’’). The address of the principal executive offices of the Company is One Market Plaza. San
Francisco. CA 94105. The title of the class of equity securities to which this Statement relates is the common
stock, par value $.001 per share, of the Company (the *‘Shares™’)

Item 2. Tender Offer of the Bidder

The Statement relates to a tender offer by UP Acquisition Corporation. a Delaware corporation (the
“"Purchaser’’) and an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Union Pacific Corporation. a Utah corporation
(**Union Pacific’’), disclosed in a Tender Offer Statement on Schedule 14D-1 dated August 9. 1995 (the
“*Schedule 14D-1'") with respect to an offer to purchase up to 39.034,.471 Shares (constituting 25% of the
outstanding Shares) at a price of $25.00 per Share (such price, or such higher price per Share as may be paid in
the Offer (as defined below). being the **Offer Price’"), net to the seller in cash, upon the terms and subject 0
the conditions set forth in the Offer to Purchase dated August 9, 1995 (the **Offer to Purchase’") and the related
Letter of Transmittal (waich, as amended from ume to time. together constitute the *‘Offer’’). The Offer to
Purchase and the related Letter of Transmittal are filed herewith as Exhibits | and 2. respectively, to this
Schedule 14D-9 and incorporated herein by reference. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have
the meanings set forth in the Offer to Purchase

The Offer is conaitioned upon. ameng other things. (a) the Purchaser receiving, prior to the expiration of
the Offer. an informal writter: opinion in form and substance satisfactory to Purchaser from the staff of the
Interstate Commerce Commission (or its successor. if any) (the “'ICC’"), without the imposition of any
conditions unacceptable to the Purchaser, that the use of a voting trust (the **Voting Trust’’) is consistent with
the policies of the ICC against unauthorized acquisitions of control of a regulated carrier, and (b) the Purchaser
receiving, prior to the expiration of the Offer. an informal statement from the premerger notification office of the
Federal Trade Commission (the “*FTC’") that either (i) no review of the Offer. the Merger and the transactions
contemplated by the Ancillary Agreements (as defined in the Offer to Purchase) will be undertaken pursuant to
the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976. as amended (the "*HSR Act’’). or (ii) the
transactions contemplated by the Offer and the Merger (the '“Transactions'’) and the transactions contemplated
by the Ancillary Agreeiments are not subject to the HSR Act, or in the absence of the receipt of such informal
statement referred to in clause (1) or (i1) above, any applicable waiting period under the HSR Act shall have
expired or been terminaied pnor to the expiration of the Offer (such condition being the **HSR Condition
Counsel for Union Pacific has been orally advised by the premerger notification office of the FTC that the Offer
and the Merger are exempt from the HSR Act and Union Pacinc has advised the Company thet 1t currently
expects the HSR Condition will be satisfied. See Section 15 of the Offer to Purchase under the caption “The
Offer—Conditions of the Offer’” which is incorporated herein by reference

The Offer is being made pursuant to the Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of August 3. 1995 (the
‘Merger Agreement’’) among Union Pacific, the Purchaser. Union Pacific Railroad Company. a Utah
corporation and an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Parent (‘“*UPRR’") and the Company. The Merger
Agreement is incorporated herein by reference. The Merger Agreement provides, among other things. for the
making of the Offer by the Purchaser and further provides that, after consummation of the Offer, Purchaser will
be merged with and into UPRR (the **Sub Merger'’), with UPRR being the surviving corporation. Upon receipt
of a favorable decision of the ICC granting approval. exemption or other authority therefor, the Company will
be merged with and into the UPRR (the Merger'" and together with the Sub Merger. the “*Mergers''). with
UPRR continuing as the surviving corporation (the *‘Survivine Corporation™ Pursuant (o the Merger
Agreement. each of the Company’s stockholders (the *‘Stockholders’”) has the right to submit a request (an
‘Election’") specifying the number of Shares that such Stockholder desires to have converted into 0.4065 shares
of common stock. par value $2.50 per share (**Union Pacific Shares'’), of Union Pacific (the “*Stock Merger
Consideration™") and the number of Shares that such Stockholder desires to have converted into the nght to

receive $25.00 per Share in cash. without interest (the **Cash Merger Consideration™* and. together with the Ofier

Price and the Stock Merger Consideration. the **Consideration”’
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The Merger Agreement provides that the aggregate number of Shares to be converted into Stock Merger
Consideration shall be equal as nearly as practicable to 60% of all Shares outstanding immediatelv prior to the
date on which the Merger becomes effective (the “‘Outstanding Shares’*) and that the number of Shares to be
converted into the (,‘.niﬁ Merger Consideration. together with Shares tendered in the Offer. shall be equal as
nearly as practicable to 40% of all Outstanding Shares. In the event that Stockholders make Elections to receive
either Cash Merger Consideration or Stock Merger Consideration in excess of such proportions. Consideration
will be prorated so that the Consideration will be issued in such proportions. The procedures for such proration
are described in Section 13 of the Offer to Purchase under the caption *‘The Offer—Merger Agreement
Shareholders Acreements. Registration Rights Agreements: Other Agreements—Conversion of Shares’ and
such portion of the Offer to Purcha:e are hereby incorporated herein by reference. The Merger Agreement is
incorperated herein by reference

According to the Offer to Purchase. the principal executive offices of the Union Pacific and the Purchaser
are located at Martin Tower, Eighth and Eaton Avenues. Bethlehem, PA 18018 and the principal executive
offices of UPRR are located at 1416 Dodge Street. Omaha, Nebraska 68179

Item 3. !dentity and Background

(a) The name and address of the Company, which is the person filing this Statement, are set forth in Item |
above

(b) Except as described below or incorporated by reference herein. to the knowledge of the Company, as of
the date hereof. there exists no material contract. agreement, arrangement or understanding and no actual or
potential confiict of interest between the Company or its affiliates and (i) the Company, its executive officers,
directors or affiliates or (ii) the Purchaser or its executive officers. directors or afhhates

Employee Matters

Existing Emplovment Agreements. The Company maintains employmer: agreements with a number of
execunves. including Messrs. Davis, Starzel. Orris, Harvey, Matthews. Parsons and Galardi These agreements
provide. among other things, for the pavment of certain severance and other benefits upon certain qualifying
terminations of the employment of such officers. If Mr. Davis" emplovment is terminated other than for cause,
or if Mr. Davis’ utle or duties have substanuaily changed and he resigns prior to March 1. 1998, the Company
vill be obligated to inake cerntain payments to him mcluding an amount equal to the greater of $1.000.000 or
75% of the base pay he would have received had he remained employed for the full period. If the employment
't any of Messrs. Starzel. Omis. Harvey and Matthews is terrinated bv the Company other than for cause. or if
any o* them should resign following certain changes in their employmeni status (such as a change in their title
r dutics or a reduction n their salarv. or both). the Company will be obligated to make certain payments,
includinz an amount equal to two times the respective annual base salanes in effect on the date of empioyment
termination. If the employment of Mr. Parsons is terminated by the Company other than for cause. the (Company
will be obligated to make certain paymenis to him. including an amount equal to his base salary between the
date of termination of employment and June 1. 1998, If the employment of Mr. Galardi is termvnated by the
Company other than for cause. the ( ompany will be obligated to make certain payments to him. including an
amount equal to one vear's base salary. The base salary for 1995 for Mr. Davis and Mr Omis is $600.000 and
$450.000. respectively. and $350.000 for each of Messrs Starzel, Harvey, Matthews and Parsons

The existing employment agreements with Messrs. Davis. Starzel. Matthews and Parsons provide for certain
nome purchase loans that are interest free during employment. If the employment of Messrs. Davis, Starzel and

Matthews is terminated by the Company other than for cause. the remaining balance of the loan will be forgiven

The empioyment agreements and certain supplemental retirement agreements with Messrs. Starzel. Orris
Harvey and Matthews provide each of them with supplemental retirement benefits commencing on specified
ior thereto with appropnate actuarial reduction) and in specified monthly amounts (subject to certain

ients to reflect increases in the cost of living). which payments would continue until the later of their

death or the death of their respective spouses: provided. that the specified monthly amount for Mr. Orris will be
» retirement benefits under the Southemn Pacific Rail Corporation Pension Plan. The supplemental
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retirement benefit for each of Messrs. Starzel. Orris and Harvey is $10.000 per month uporn reaching age 62. Mr
Matthews may elect to receive $8.500 per month beginning on September 1. 2005 or $7.500 per month beginning
at any ume after September 1. 2000 but before September 1, 2005 unless Mr. Matthews voluntarily resigns his
employment prior to September 1, 2005. The employment agreement with Mr. Parsons provides for crediting
certain additional years of service pursuant to a supplemental retirement arrangement such that he will be treated

as having accrued 27 vears of benefit service with the Company

Merger Agreement.  The following is a summary of certain portions of the Merger Agreement which relate
to arrangements among the Company and Union Pacific and/or its affiliates and the Company s executive officers
and directors. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined below shall have the meanings set forth in the Merger

Agreement

Existing Employment and Benefit Arrangements. The Merger Agreement provides that Union Pacific shall
cause the Surviving Corporation and its Subsidiaries to honor and assume the existing employment agreements,
supplemental executive retirement agreements and stock bonus agreements. including those described above for
the named executive officers. Union Pacific shall also cause the Surviving Corporation and its subsidiaries to
honor and assume the Company’s other employee benefit plans and employee programs: provided. however, that
the other employee benefit plans and employee programs may be amended or terminated at any time in
accordance with applicable law (except to the extent benefits have already vested thereunder). The Merger
Agreement turther provides that the existing severance plan for employees of the Company and its Subsidiaries
who are terminated other than for cause shall be continued in effect for at least one vear following the Effective

Time

Management Continuity Plan.  The Merger Agreement provides that the Company and its subsidiaries shall
estabhish a “*Management Continuity Plan (the "MCP’)"" that will provide certain pavments to certain non-
agreement employees of the Company or its Subsidiaries based upon their continued employment and
pertormance during the penod from the date of the Merger Agreement (or date of hire or promotion. if later) to
the date of the payment (or. in the case of the first payment, a date which shortly preceded the date of payment)
In orcer to be eligible to participate in the MCP. an employee must generally waive his or her nght. if any. to
receive a payment from any other incentive plan maintained by the Company or its subsidiaries or the Surviving
Corporation (or its Subsidianies), including. without limitation. the stock bonus arrangements described in the
Company’s Nutice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement dated March 27, 1995 (the **1995 Proxy
Statement’’). other than the night of Messrs. Starzel and Harvey under separate agreements to receive 16.666
Shares each on each of January |, 1996 and January 1. 1997 if they have not voluntarily resigned. Under the
MCP. payment of awards will be made in two parts. with either 50% or 60% of the award payable prior to—_
December 31. 1995 (depending on the classification of the employee). and the remaining portion payable at the

e
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carlier of the 60th day following the Effective Time or any earlier date of the employee's termination of
employment. In order to be entitled to the second portion of the award under the MCP, the employee must be
employed by the Company or its Subsidianes at the Effective Time and must remain in employment for at least
60 days immediately following the Effective Time. unless such employment is earlier terminated at the request
of the Surviving Corporation or its Subsidiaries. The Merger Agreement provides that the Company may make
MCP awards i an aggregate amount up to $15.700.000. and the Merger Agreement also provides that the
maximum amount pavable under an award to Mr. Davis and Mr. Ormis will not exceed $1.400.000 and $900.000.
respectively. and S700.000 for each of Messrs. Starzel. Harvey, Matthews and Parsons

Equiry Incentive Plan The Merger Agreement provides that prior to the purchase of Shares pursuant to
the Offer. the Board of Directors (or. if appropniate. any committee administering the Equity Incentive Plan) will
adopt resolutions 01 take other actions as necessary (o assure that no holder of an outstanding Award with respect
to which Shares might otherwise be issued at or after the Effective Time will have any nght to receive equity
secunties of the Company. the Surviving Corporation or any Subsidiary at or after the Effective Time. Parent
and Surviving Corporation have agreed to cause the committee under the Equity Incentive Plan to make adequate
provision for the adjustment of outstanding Awards under the Stock Bonus Agreements issued pursuant io and
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in accordance with the terms of the Equity Incentive Plan. The Company will also ensure that. following the
Effective Time, no participant in any other stock based plan. agreement. program or arrangement (including.
without limitation, the Employee Stock Purchase Plan) will have any right thereunder to acquire equity securities
of the Company, the Surviving Corporation or any Subsidiary)

Severance Arrangements. In addition to the severance arrangements provided under the individual
employment agreements, and the Company’s existing severance plan. the Merger Agreement provides that the
Company and its Subsidiaries shall, promptly after the completion of the purchase of Shares pursuant to the
Offer. establish an enhanced severance program (the “‘Enhanced Severance Program’’) to provide certain
addinonal severance amounts to certain terminated. non-agreement employvees who become entitled to severance
at or atter the Effecive Time pursuant to the existing severance plan, the substantially identical plans to be
established foi certain Subsidiaries which do not currently have a severance pian, or the individual employmerit
agreements whicl: provide severance benefits. The Merger Agreement provides that the Enhanced Severance
Program plus all severance otherwise payable may provide aggregate benefits not in excess of $22.000.000 to all
employees covered by the Program, anc also provides that the total amount of severance benefits that may be
paid to Messrs. Davis. Grris, Starzel, Harvey, Matthews and Parsons (excluding cenain miscellaneous items) will
not exceed $1.600.000, $1,350,000. $1.050.000, $1.050,000, $1,050.000 and $1.020.833. respectively. For
purposes of the Enhanced Severance Program. participants will be divided into three categones, and the
severance amount payable will range from an additional one year’s base salary for certain eruployees (in addition
to the severance otherwise payable) to the incremental amount necessary to provide an aggregate of 18 months
or one year of severance for other employees

Certain additional information with respect to executive compensation and related empioyee benefits and
other information concerning the Company's executive officers or directors, as modified by the foregoing
discusston set forth in this Item 3(b), is set forth in the 1995 Proxy Statement. under the sections entitled **Board
of Directors.”” *‘Executive Compensation.”” *‘Employment Agreements.”” ‘‘Pension Plan"" ‘‘Report of the
Compensation Commitiee of Southern Pacific Rail Corporation’” (only to the extent that the Report contains
information with respect to Messrs. Davis, Starzel. Orris. Harvey and Matthews), **Beneficial Ownership of
Stock.”” and “*Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.’” and is incorporated herein by reference. A copy
of the pertinent sections of the 1995 Proxy Statement is filed as an exhibit to this Schedule 14D-9. Because Mr
Parsons and Mr. Galardi were not employed with the Company in 1994, the 1995 Proxy Statement does not
contain information about their compensation arrangements. Those agreements are filed as Exhibits 24 and 25 to
this Schedule 14D-9 and are incorporated herein by reference

Certain Other Matters

Certain information with respect to certain contracts, agreements. arrangements and understandings between
the Company and certain of its executive officers. directors or affiliates (including TAC or one of its affiliaies) is
set forth in the 1995 Proxy Statement. under the section entitled **Compensation Committee Interlocks and
Insider Participation,”” and is incorporated herein by reference. A copy of the pertinent section of the 1995 Proxy
Statement is filed as Exhibit 18 to this Schedule 14D-9. The Company plans to continue its activities under these
agreements. as disclosed to Union Pacific pursuant to the Merger Agreement. The Company also is considering,
and has so disclosed to Union Pacific pursuant to the Merger Agreement. certain other proposed transactions
with TAC or one of TAC's affiliates involving (i) the purchase by an affiliate of TAC of certain tracts of land.
(1) amendments to the pipeline easement described in the 1995 Proxy Statement and (iii) the grant of additional
fiber optic easements to an affiliate of TAC. Completion of these proposed transactions are subject to approval
by independent directors of the Company after receipt of an appraisal from an independent appraiser that the
terms are fair to the Company and comparable to an arms length transaction with an unaffiliated party

Certain substantial Stockholders have entered into agreements with Union Pacific in connection with the
Merger Agreement. MSLEF I[I. which beneficially owns approximately 8.5% of the Outstanding Shares, has
entered nto the MSLEF Shareholder Agreement (as defined in the Offer to Purchase) pursuant to which
MSLEF Il agreed. among other things. to vote all Shares benzficially owned by it (i) in favor of the Merger and
(i) subject to certain conditions. against mergers or other business combinations (other than the Merger). That
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agreement will remain in effect until the earlier of (x) the consummation of the Merg (y) six months following
the termination of the Merger Agreement by the Company's Board of Directors pursuant to the Board's fiducian
duties and (z) upon the termination of the Merger Agreement in accordance with the other termination provisions
of the Merger Agreement

Mr. Philip F. Anschutz (**Mr Anschutz’"). The Anschutz Corporation (“"TAC" and the Anschutz
Foundation (the **Foundation’" and. together with Mr. Anschutz and TAC. the **Anschutz Shareholcers™" ). w hich
beneficially own an aggregate of approximately 31.8% of the Outstanding Shares. have entered into the Anschutz
Shareholders Agreement (as defined in the Offer to Purchase). which contains voting provisions substantially
similar to those contaired in the MSLEF Shareholder Agreement. The Anschutz Shareholders Agreement also
provides for certain “‘standstill’’ and other restrictions and limitations with respect to the Union Pacific Shares
to be acquired by the Anschutz Shareholders in the Merger. In addition, the Anschutz Shareholders A greement
provides that the Board of Directors of Union Pacific will elect Mr. Anschutz, or another designee reasonably
acceptable to Union Pacific, as a director of Union Pacific’s Board of Directors and will appoint Mr. Anschutz
(but not any other designee) as Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors

The Anschutz Shareholders and Union Pacific have also entered into The Anschutz/Resources SharehoiJders
\greement (as defined in the Offer to Purchase), which provides for substantially similar **standstill’* and other
restnctions with respect to the Anschutz Shareholders as those contained in the Anschutz Shareholders
Agreement. In addition, the Anschutz/Resources Shareholders Agreement provides that the Board of Directors
of Resources will elect a designee of TAC (other than persons affiliated with the Anschutz Shareholders or their

affiliates), reasonably acceptable to the Board of Directors of Resources. as a director of Resources

ristration rnights n

The Anschutz Shareholders also have been granted. subject to certain conditions. reg
P
r

respect of Union Pacific Shares and Resouvrces Shares that will be acquired. In addition. the Purchaser has been
granted. subject to certain conditions, registration rights in respect of the Shares 1o be purchased pursuant to the

Oftter

The agreements summarized above between one or more of the Company and certain substantial
Stockhoiders and Union Pacific or the Purchaser made 1n connection ‘with the Merger Agreement are described
more fully ir Section 13 of the Offer to Purchase under the caption “‘The Offer—Merger

Sharehoiders Agreements: Registration Rights Agreements: Other Agreements’” and such portions of

to Purchase are hereby ) herein by reference. Such portions of the Offer to Purchase contain
summanes of these and cenain other agreements. Such summaries and the summaries above do not purport to be
complete and are qualified in their entirety by reference to the full text ol the appropriate agreements which are
attached hereto as Exhibits 11 through 17 to this Schedule 14D-S. each of which is hereby incorporated herein
OV reterence
In addition. the existing corporate matters agreement including registration rights in favor of TAC and
MSLEF II granted thereunder) and the existing stockholder agreement to which TAC and MSLEF II are parties.
Which are described in the Company ‘s 1995 Proxy Statement under the caption **Beneficial ( Jwnership of Stock
will terminate as of the Effective Time as a result of the Merger. In c~nnection with execution of the Merger
TAC and MSLEF I1 amended the corporate matters agreement to provide for such

-ftective Time and to modify the existing registration nghts to account for the registration

Company to Purchaser under the Purchaser/Company RRA (as defined in the Offer to
ne

I the amendment to the corporate matters agreement is filed as Exhibit 27 to this Schedule
Is incorporated by reference herein

Additionally. the Offer to Purchase describes certain operating relationships between the Company or it
\d UPRR under the caption “‘The Offer—Certain Information Concemn ng The Company—Certain
P> and such portions of the Offer to Purchase are hereby incorporated herein by reference

t purpont to be complete and are qualified in their entirety by reference to the Offer to

fied hereto as Exhibit | to this Schedule 14D-9 and incorporated here Dy rererence

¢d nNere
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The Morgan Stanley Leveraged Equity Fund II. L.P. (""MSLEF II"') is a substantial Stockholder of the
Company. The sole general partn=r of MSLEF I is Morgan Stanley Leveraged Equity Fund I, Inc. (*"MSLEF
L, Inc.”"), a wholly owned subsidiary of Morgan Stanley Group Inc. Each of MSLEF 11, Inc. and Morgan Stanle)
Group Inc. may be deemed to have shared voting and dispositive power with respect to the Shares held by
MSLEF I1. As of August 3, 1995, MSLEF Il was the record and beneficial owner of, and had the nght to vote
and to dispose of. an aggregate of 13,341,580 Shares. represenung approximately 8.5% of the then outstanding
Shares. Mr. Frank V. Sica, a member of the Board of Directors of the Company (the *‘Board"") since October
1989, is a Managing Director of M~r~ n Stanley & Co. Incorporated (**Morgan Stanley’’) and a Vice Chairman
and Director of MSLEF I, Inc. Morgan Stanley has acted as financial advisor to the Company in connection
with the Offer and the Merger and has rendered to the Board an opinion that the Consideration to be received by
the Stockholders pursuant to the Offer and the Merger, taken together, is fair from a financial point of view to
the Stockholders. See Item 4 *“The Solicitation or Recommendation—Opinion of Financial Advisor’* and Item 5
“"Persons Retained. Employed or to be Compensated.”* In addition, Richard B. Cheney. former Secretary of
Defense. is a director of both Union Pacific and Morgan Stanley Group Inc.

The Company and Union Pacific entered into a Confidentiality Agreement dated as of September 8. 1994
A copy of such Confidentiality Agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit 10 to this Schedule 14D-9 and is
incorporated herein by reference

Indemnification under Delaware Law, the ( “ompany’s Charter, By-laws and the Merger Agreement

The Company is a Delaware corporation. Section 145 of the Delaware General Corporation Law (the
“Delaware Law'’), provides that a corporation may indemnify any person who was or is. or is threatened to be
made. a party to any threatened, pending or completed legal action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal.
adrainistrative or investigative (other than an action by or in the right of such corporation), by reason of the fact
that such person is or was an officer, director. employee or agent of such corporation, or is or was ser ing at the
request of such corporation as a director. officer. employee or agent of another corporation or enterprise (an
“Indemnified Party'"’). The indemnity may include expenses (including attorney's fees), Jjudgments, fines and

amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by the indemnified person in connection with such
action. suit or proceeding, provided such officer. director. employee or agent acted in good faith and in a manner
12 or she reasonably believed to be in or not Opposed to the corporation’s best interest and. for criminai
proceedings, had no reasonable cause to believe that his or her conduct was unlawful. A Delaware corporation
may indemnify officers and directors in an action by or in the night of the corporation under the same conditions.
except that no indemnification is permitted without Judicial approval if the officer or director is adjudged to be
liable to the corporation. Where an officer or director is successful on the merits or otherwise in the defense of
any action referred to above. the corporation must indemnify him or her against the expenses that such officer or
director actually and reasonably incurred il

Reference is also made to Section 102(b)(7) of the Delaware Law, which enables a corporation in its
oniginai certificate of incorporation or an amendment thereto to eliminate or limit the personal liability of a
director to the corporation or its stockholders for violations of the director's fiduciary duty, except (i) for any
breach of the director's duty of ioyalty to the corporation or its stockholders. (ii) for acts or omissions not in
good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law, (iii) pursuant to Section 174
of the Delaware Law (providing for liability of directors for unlawful payment of dividends or unlawful stock
purchases or redemptions) or (iv) for any transaction from which a director derived an improper personal benefit

Article Seventh of the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company provides that the
officers. directors and emplovees and the former officers. directors and employees of the Company and the legai
represeniatives ot any such persons shall be indemnified by the Company. in accordance with the procedures
established in the By-laws of the Company to the fullest extent permitted by Delaware Law.

Article Eighth of the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company provides that to
the fullest extent permitted by the Delaware Law, a director of the Company shall not be liable to the Company
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or its stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director. Any repeal or modification
of Article Eighth by the stockholders of the Company shall be prospective only and shall not adversely affect
any nght or protection of a director of the Company existing at the time of such repeal or modification.

Article VI of the By-laws of the Company generally mirrors Delaware Law. and provides that to the extent
that any Indemnified Party has been successful on the merits or otherwise in defense of any Third Party Action
or Derivative Action, or in defense of any claim, issue or matter therein. he shall be indemnified against expenses
(including attorneys’ fees) actually and reasonably incurred by him in connection therewith without the nece SSity
of any determination that he has me the applicable standards of conduct

Article VI of the By-laws of the Company aiso provides that the Company shall have the right to impose as
conditions to any indemnification. such reasonable reimbursements and conditions as to the board of di rectors or
stockholders may appear appropnate in each specific case and circumstances

Further. if Article VI of the By-Laws of the Company or any provision thereof shall be invalidated by any
court on any ground. then the Company shall nevertheless indemnify each party ctherwise entitied to
indemnification thereunder to the fullest extent permitted by law or any applicable provision of Article VI that
shall not have been invalidated.

Pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement. Union Pacific has agreed that at all imes after the date on
which the Merger becomes effective (*‘Effective Time''). it shall indemnify, or sholl cause the Surviving
C: rporation and its subsidiaries to indemnify, each Indemnified Party to the same extent and in the same manne:
as 1s now provided in the respective charters or by-laws of the Company and such subsidianes or otherwise in
cttect on the date of the Merger Agreement. with respect to any claim, liability, loss. damage. cost or expense
(whenever asserted or claimed) (**Indemnified Liability™") based in whole or in part on. or arising in whole or in
part out of, any matter existing or occurring at or prior to the Effective Time. Union Pacific shall. and shall cause
the Surviving Corporation to, maintain in effect for not less than six vears after consummation of the Merger the
current policies of directors’ and officers’ liability insurance maintained by the Company and 1ts subsidianes on
the date hereol or at least the same coverage. Without limiting the foregoing. 1n the event any Indemnified Party
becomes involved in any capacity in any action, proceeding or investigation based in whole or in part on any
matter. including the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement, existing on occurring at or prnor to
the Effective Time. then to the extent permitted by law. Unior Pacific shall. or shall cause the Surviving
Corporation to. periodically advance to Indemnified Party its legal and other expenses. subject to the provision

by such Indemnified Party of an undertaking to reimburse the amounts so advanced in the event of a final

determiration by a court of competent juisdiction that such Indemnified P: 1y 1s not entitled thereto

Item 4. The Solicitation or Recommendation

(a) Recommendation of the Board of Directors. At a special meeting held on August 3, 1995, the Board
unanimously (i) determined that the terms of the Offer and the Merger are fair to and in the best interests of the
Company and the Stockholders and (ii) approved the Merger Agreement. the Ancillary Agreements and the
Transactions. The Board recommends that the Stockholders who desire to receive cash in connection with the
Transactions tender their Shares pursuant to the Offer

In deciding whether to tender Shares in the Offer. the Board believes that Stockholders should take the
tollowing factors into account

(1) Stockholders who tender their Shares will have an opportunity to receive a premium over the price
at which the Shares were trading on the NYSE prior to the announcement of the Transactions for 25% or
more of their Shares (depending on the aggregate number of Shares tendered and the resulting proration
factor, it any). prior to action on the Merger by the ICC. Because the ICC is not expected to make a ruling
with respect to the Merger until sometime in 1996. stockholders who tender their Shares will be able to
receive the Offer Price substantially sooner then they will receive either the Cash "-erJ Consideration or
the Stock Merger Consideration. In addition. although the C ompany believes that the ICC will approve the
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Merger. no assurances can be given that such approval will be obtained. and stockholders who do not tender
their Shares in the Offer will bear the risk relating to ICC approval with respect to all of their Shares rather
than availing themselves of the opportunity to eliminate that risk with respect to at least 25% of their Shares

(ii) Stockholders who tender their Shares in the Offer may receive less Stock Merger Consideration
than they would if they were not to tender their Shares. and as a result they may have a lesser ownership
interest in the combined company. However, because the Stock Merger Consideration will constitute no
more than 60% of the overall Consideration. Stockholders who decide not to tender Shares in the Offer
because they wish to receive a greater portion of Stock Merger Consideration for their Shares nevertheless
may be required to receive some Cash Merger Consideration,

(i) Generally speaking. Stockholders who exchange their Shares for cash in the Offer or the Merger
will be subject to federal income tax, while Stockholders will be able to exchange their Shares for the Stock
Merger Consideration on a tax-free basis, in each case as more fully described in Section S of the Offe: to
Purchase under the caption **Certain Federal Income Tax Consequences.”” Stockholders should take this
difference in U.S. federal income tax treatment into account in deciding whether to tender their Shares

A form of letter to Stockholders communicating the Board's recommendation and the press releases
announcing the Merger Agreement and the Transactions are attached hereto as Exhibits 3. 5 and 6. respectively,
to this Schedule 14D-9. each of which is hereby incorporated herein by reference.

(b)(1) Background of the Offer: Contacts with the Company. In the ordinary course of Union Pacific's
long-term strategic review process, Union Pacific and UPRR routinely analyze potential combinations with
vanous railroad companies. Beginning in mid-1994. certain senior officers of Union Pacific and the Company
had occasional. informal discussions regarding the possibility and desirability of an acquisition of the Company
by Union Pacific and other possible transactions. On September 8. 1994, Union Pacific and the Company entered
into a Confidentiality Agreement in connection with these discussions, but the discussions terminated later in
September 1994,

In late February. 1995 and continuing through mid-April. 1995, certain senior officers and directors of
Union Pacific and the Company had a number of meetings and telephone conversations to discuss on a
preliminary basis a possible acquisition of the Company by Umon Pacific. In connection with such preliminary
discussions. on April 8. 1995, Union Pacific's legal counsel provided to the Company and its legal counsel a
draft merger agreement. No negotiations were ever conducted concerning such draft agreement. In mid-April.
1995, Uni~n Pacific and the Company discontinued discussions concermning a possible transaction due to an
inability to reach agreement on the structure and terms thereof

Discussions and meetings concerning a possible transaction resumed in late June. 1995 among certain senior
officers of Union Pacific and the Company. At a meeting on July 17. 1995, senior officers of Union Pacifi¢ and
the Company established a preliminary basis for continuing discussions to seek (o reach an agreement concerning
a transaction and for proceeding with a due diligence review. Such officers of Union Pacific and the Company
determined to continue discussions on the basis of the following tentative t2rms. among others: Union Pacific
would acquire up to 25% of the Outstanding Shares in a cash tender offer at $25.00 per Share and. following
receipt of ICC approval and the satisfaction of other conditions. would acquire the remaining Shares in a “‘cash
election”” merger in which Stockholders would receive. at their election. for each Share. cash consideration of
$25.00. or a fraction of a share of Union Pacific Shares determined by dividing $25.00 by the average closing
price of Union Pacific Shares prior to the Merger (subject to a pricing “‘collar’” mechanism which would result
in not more than 0.4464 shares of Union Pacific Shares nor less than 0.4065 shares being issued per Share). In
such transactions. 60% o the Shares would be converted into Union Pacific Shares and the remaining 40% into
cash. including the Shares to be acquired in the tender offer

At the July 17. 1995 meeting. Union Pacific indicated to Mr. Anschutz that its willingness to continue

discussions was conditioned upon. among other things. the willingness of the Anschutz Shareholders and
MSLEF 11 to consider agreeing to vote their Shares. representing approximately 31.8% and 8.5%. respectively.
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of the Outstanding Shares. in favor of the Merger. Mr. Anschutz indicated that the Anschutz Shareholders would
be willing to consider such an agreement if the Company and Union Pacific could negotiate sausfactory terms
for a transaction, and provided that satisfactory terms concerning ~n agreement between the Anschutz
Shareholders and Union Pacific could be negotiated Subsequently. Union Pacific was advised that MSLEF ]
also would be willing to consider an agreement to vote its Shares in favor of the Merger if the Company and
Union Pacific could negotiate sausfactory terms for a transaction. and subject to MSLEF II's negotiation of

saustactory terms of an agreement with Union Pacific

Management of Un:on Pacific and the Company each conditioned their willingness to continue discussions
concerming a possible transaction upon, among other things. the negotiation of satisiactory terms and the
egotiation and execution of definitive iransaction agreements. a satisfactory due diligence review. and the
approval of their respective Boards of Directors The Company also indicated 1o L nion Pacific that its willingness
to continue discussions was conditioned upon the willingness of Union Pacific to enter into an appropriate
agreement restricting voting, additional acquisitons and dispositions of Shares to be purchased by Union Pacific
in the Offer

Following the Julv 17, 1995 meeting, extensive due diligence was conducted by the Company. Union
Pacific and their respecuve legal, financial and accounting advisors. In addition, senior officers of the Company
and Union Pacific and their respective counsei met and talked regularly to negotiate the terms of the transaction
and the definitive agreements providing for the transaction. and senior officers of Union Pacific and its counsel
negotiated with the Anschutz Shareholders and MSLEF 1] and their counsel the terms of their transactions and
the definitive agreements therefor

On July 27, 1995, at a regularly scheduled meeting, the Board of Directors of Union Pacific analyzed and
reviewed, with Union Pacific's Mmanagement and financial and legal advisors. among other things, various
strategic. financial and legal considerations “onceming a possible transaction with the Company, the potential
terms of a transaction and the status of negonations. (At several earlier meetings, Union Pacific’s Board of
Directors had reviewed the strategic considerations and other issues. as wel] as the status of any discussions then
bemng conducted, regarding such an acquisition.) At the July 27 meeting. Union Pacific’s management and
financial and legal advisors made presentations to the Union Pacific Board concerning various aspects of the
possible transaction. No decision was reached by the Union Pacific Board at the meeting, but it was the
consensus of directors that management and Union Pacific’s advisors should continue to negontiate with the
Company and report back to the Union Pacific Board once management was prepared to make a
recommendation. At its July 27. 1995 meetng, the Board of Directors of Union Pacific approved the IPO and
the Spin-off (each as defined in the Offer to Purchase) Following the meetng. Union Pacific issued a press
release announcing the IPO

On July 27, 1995, at a regularly scheduled meetng, the Board of Directors of the Company analyzed and
reviewed. with the Company's Mmanagement and financial and legal advisors. among other things, varous
strategic, financiz! and legal considerations concerning a possible transaction with the Company. the potental
lesms of a transaction and the status of negouations. At the July 27 meeting, the Company’s management and
financial and legal advisors made presentations to the Board concerming various aspects of the possible
transaction. No decision was reached by the Board of the Company at the meeting, but it was the consensus of
directors that management and the Company's advisors should continue to negouate with Union Pacific and
report back to the Board of the Company once the Company's management was prepared to make a
recommendation

p . ~ > i ad H »
On August 2. 1995, senior otficers of Union Pacific and the ( ompany met and had various telephone

conversanons to discuss the progress of the negotiations to date. certain issues between the parties that had not
\ dmzcm; With respect to the proposed pricing for the transaction. the
0 of 40635 shares ur.( nion Pacific Shares per Share for the stock portion
" exchange ratio with a pricing *‘collar™

been resolved. and the results of due
parties agreed to a fixed exchange rati
ot the purchase price. in place of the previously discussed **floaung’
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On August 3. 1995, the Board of Directors of Union Pacific held a special telephonic meeting to review
with the advice and assistance of the Board's financial and legal advisors. the proposed Merger Agreement and
Ancillary Agreements and the Transactions. At such meeting, Union Pacific’s manageme.it and financial and
legal advisors made presemations to the Board concerning the transaction. and Union Pacific’s financial advisor
CS First Boston Corporation (**CS First Boston'’), rendered to Union Pacific's Board an oral opinion (which
was subseqiently confirmed 1n writing) to the effect that. as of such date. the consideration to be paid by Union
Pacific in the Offer and the Merger, taken together, was fair to Union Pacific from 2 financial point of view
Following the Board's review of the Transactions, the Board unammously approved (with three directors absent.
and one direcior abstaining because of an affiliation with Morgan Stanley. the financial advisor to the Company
in connection with the Transactions and an affiliate of MSLEF Ii. a party to an Ancillary Agreement in its
capacity as a Stockholder) the proposed Merger Agreement and Ancillary Agreements and the Transactions. and
authorized, subject to completion of negotiation of a limited number of remaining issues, the execution and
delivery of such Agreements

Also on August 3, 1995, the Board of Directors of the Company held a special meeting to review, with the
advice and assistance of the Board's financial and legal advisors. the proposed Merger Agreement and Ancillary
Agreements and the Transactions, including the Offer and Merger. At such meeting, the Company s management
and financial and legal advisors made presentations to the Board concerning the Transactions and the Company's
financial advisor, Morgan Stanley, provided an oral opinion (which was subsequently confirmed in writing) that
on the date of the Merger Agreement the consideration to be received by Stockholders pursuant to the Offer and
the Merger, taken together. is fair from a financial point of view to such Stockholders. Following the Board's
review of the Transactions. the Board unanimously approved the proposed Merger Agreement and Ancillary
Agreements and the transactions contemplated thereby, authorized (subject to completion of negotiation of a
limited number of remaining issues) the execution and delivery of such Agreements, determined that the Offer
and the Merger are fair to and in the best interests of the Stockholders, recommended that Stockholders who
desire to receive cash for their Shares accept the Offer and tender their Shares pursuant to the Offer. and
recommended that Stockholders approve and adopt the Merger Agreement. The Board's approval of the Merger
Agreement and the Ancillary Agreements and the Transactions constituted approval for purposes of Section 203
of the DGCL such that the provisions of the statute are not applicable to such Agreements or the Transactions

contemplated the ooy (see the Offer to Purchase under the caption. ‘*Certain Legai Matters; Regulatory
F » £ £ )

Approvals—State Takeover Statutes™

Following the August 3, 1995 Board meetings described above. the following joint press release was issued

BETHLEHEM. PA.. Aug. 3—Union Pacific Corporation (NYSE: UNP) and Southern Pacific Rail
Corporation (NYSE: RSP) announced today that thev have reached an agreement providing for the merger
of Southemn Pacific with Union Pacific. The $5.4 billion transaction would form North America’s largest
rallroad. a 34.000-mile network operating in 25 states and serving both Mexico and Canada. The two
railroad companies had combined 1994 operating revenues of $9.54 billion

The agreement. approved today by the Boards of Directors of Union Pacific and Southermn Pacific, is
subject to execution of a definitive merger agreement. which 15 expected to be signed very shortly. Under
terms of the agreement, Union Pacific would make a first-step cash tender offer of $25.00 & share for up to
25 percent of the Common Stock of Southern Pacific. The tender offer would commence next week. The
shares purchased in the tender offer will be held in a voting trust. Following completion of the cffer. and
the sansfaction of other conditions, including approval by the Interstate Commerce Commission (ICC)
Southern Pacific will be merged with Union Pacific Corporation. Upon completing the transaction, each
share of Southern Pacific stock will be converted. at the holder's election (subject to proration), into the
right to receive $25.00 in cash or 0.4065 shares of Union Pacific Common Stock. As a result of the
transaction. 60 percent of Southern Pacific shares will be converted into Union Pacific stock and the
remainig 40 percent ito cash. including the shares acquired in the onginal tender offer. The two

companies expect to file an application with the ICC no later than December |
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Union Pacific also stated that the previously announced spin-off of Union Pacific Resources would be
consummated after completion of the transaction. The initial public offering of shares of Union Pacific
Resources will proceed as scheduled.

In connection with the merger, Philip Anschutz, a major shareholder of Southern Pacific. will be
appointed non-executive Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of Union Pacific following completion
of the transaction and will enter into a customary seven-year standstill agreement. In addition. Mr. Anschutz.
who owns 31 percent of Southern Pacific. and the Morgan Stanley Leveraged Equity Fund. which owns
seven percent of Southern Pacific, have agreed to vote their shares in favor of the transaction

"*When completed. this transaction will deliver major benefits for customers,’" said Drew Lewis. Uniop
Pacific’s Chairman and Chief Executive Officer ""The combined system will be able to offer new SErvic.s
that neither Union Pacific nor Southern Pacific can offer on its own. The new system will vield exten-ive
new single-line service. faster schedules. more frequent and reliable service, shorter routes and imp oved
equipment utilization. Benefits from operating etficiencies. facility consolidations. cost savings and
increused traffic are estimated to be in excess of $500 million per year."’
During the afternoon and eveming of August 3, 1995, senior officers of the Company and Union Pacific
Mr. Anschutz and MSLEF II and their respective counsel resolved ail remaining issues to the mutual satisfaction
of the parties, and the Merger Agreement and Ancillary Agreements were executed and delivered by all parties
thereto

Prior to the commencement of trading on the morning of August 4. 1995, Union Pacific issued the following

press release

BETHLEHEM, PA.. Aug. 4—Union Pacific Corporation (NYSE: UNP) announced today that 1t has
executed a definitive merger agreement for the previously announced merger with Southern Pacific Rail
Corporation (NYSE: RSP). Under the terms of the agreement. Union Pacific will make a first-step cash
tender offer of $25.00 per share for up to 25 percent of the Common Stock of Southern Pacific Following
completion of the transaction. each share of Southern Pacific stock will be converted. subject to proration.
into the nght to receive $25.00 in cash or 0.4065 shares of Union Pacific Common Stock. As a result of the
transaction. 60 percent of Southern Pacific’s shares will be converted into Union Pacific stock and the
remaining 40 percent. including the shares acquired in the onginal tender offer. will be converted into cash

The merger is subject to receipt of Interstate Commerce Commission (ICC) approval and other
customary conditions

On August 9. 1995, Union Pacific and the Purchaser commenced the Offer

(bX2) Reasons for the Recommendation. The Board and the Company’s senior management continually
review the current and future state of the Company’s strategic position, short-term and long-term prospects,
including altermatives to remaimng an independent company. Early in 1995, following Union Pacific's
announcement that it would not pursue a business combination involving Santa Fe. the Company’s management
concluded that the proposed merger of Burlington Northern and Santa Fe was likely to be consummated in 1995
In light of this development, the Company’s management again reviewed the Company’s business and prospects
and the Company's expected future competitive situation. In connection with that review, the Company's
management considered possible business combinations with Union Pacific and other entities in the
transportation industry Following that review. the Company's management concluded that a business
combination with Union Pacific was likely to be more advantageous to the Company and its Stockholders than
any other business combination

In light of. among other things, the review described in the immediately preceding paragraph. the Board
determined that it wouid be in the best interest of the Company and its Stockholders to approve the Merger

AZreement and the Transactions. In approving the Merger Agreement and the Transactions and recommending
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that Stockholders who wish tc receive cash in connection with the Transactions tender their Shares pursuant to
the Offer, the Board considered a number of factors, including, but not limited to. the following

(1) the terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement;

(i1) the presentations by management of the Company (at Board meetings on July 27. and August 3,

1995 and at previous board meetings) regarding the financial condition, results of operations, business and
prospects of the Company. including the prospects of the Company if it remains independent:

(i11) the trading price of the Shares over the last three years and that the $25.00 per share to be paid in
the Offer and as the Cash Consideration in the Merger represents a premium of approximately 33.7% over
the $18.70 average closing sale price for the Shares on the New York Stock Exchange (**"NYSE ) for the
20 business days prior to the announcemen: of the Transactions;

(iv) the expected future trading values of the Shares in light of. among other things, the historical

trading multiples of other U.S. railroad companies:

(v) the oral and written presentations by Morgan Stanley at the July 27, and August 3, 1995 Board
meetings and the written opinion of Morgan Staniey dated August 3, 1995 to the effect that, as of the date
of the opinion. the Consideration to be received by tte Stockholders pursuant to the Offer and the Merger,
taken together. is fair from a financial point of view to the Stockholders. A copy of the opinion of Morgan
Stanley. which sets forth the procedures foliowed, the factors considered and the assumptions made by
Morgan Stanley. 1s described herein under the caption *‘Opinion of Financial Advisor’ . attached hereto as
Exhibit 9 to this Schedule 14D-9 and incorporated in its entirety herein by reference. Stockholders are
urged to read the opinion of Morgan Stanley carefully and in its entirety;

(vi) the Merger offers the opportunity for substantial synergies and the transaction structure allows the
Stockholders who receive Stock Merger Consideration to participate in those sy nergies through continued
ownership of the combined company:

(vii) the Merger provides the opportunity to participate in the potential benefits of the proposed spin-
off of Union Pacific’s oil and gas exploration and production operations;

(viil) the views expressed by management and Morgan Stanley that there did not appear to be any

other party with which the Company would be as good a strategic fit as Union Pacific. and that it was
unlikely that any other party would propose a transaction that. taken as a whole, was more favorable to the
Company and 1ts Stockholders:

(ix) the Merger Agreement permits the Board, in the exercise of its fiduciary duties, to engage 1n
negotiations with or to furnish information to third parties in response to unsolicited. written alternative
acquisition proposals after the date of the Merger Agreement: e

(x) the Merger Agreement permits the Board at any time prior to the purchase of at least 15% of the
Outstanding Shares pursuant to the Offer, in the exercise of its fiduciary duties, to terminate the Merger
Agreement in favor of a superior alternative acquisition proposal, without any payments or other hability to
Union Pacific:

(x1) although the Voting Agreements provide that the Shareholders parties thereto will not vote in
tavor of any other acquisition transaction for six months following the termination of the Merger Agreement
by the Company pursuant to the Board's exercise of its fiduciary duties, the Board believes that. in light of
the lengthy time period required for the ICC approval of an acquisition of control of the Company, this
agreement between the Shareholders and Union Pacific will not prevent the consummation of an alternative
transaction: and

(x11) Stockholders who tender their Shares pursuant to the Offer will have the opportunity to receive a
premium for at least 25% of their Shares prior to the receipt of ICC approval of the Transactions and will
receive the premium even if ICC approval is not ultimately obtained
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SIGNATURE

After reasonable inquiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief, | certify that the information set rorth

in this statement is true, complete and correct.

SOUTHERN PACIFIC RAIL CORPORATION

By: _/s/ THoMAS ] MATTHEWS
Name: Thomas J. Matthews
Title: Senior Vice President—Administration

Dated: August 9, 1995




MORGAN STANLEY

MCORGAN STANLEY & CO
INCORPORATED

1251 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS
NEW YORK. NEW YORK 10020
(212) 703-4000

August 3, 1995

Board of Directors

Southemn Pacific Rail Corporation
Southern Pacific Building

(’ne Market Plaza

,an Francisco, CA 94105

Gentlemen:

We understand that Scuthemn Pacific Rail Corporation (the "Company"), Union Pacific
Corporation (the "Buyer"), Union Pacific Railroad Company, an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Buyer, and UP Acquisition Corporation, also an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Buyer ("Acquisition Sub") have entered into an Agreement and Plan of
Merger, dated as of August 3, 1955 (the "Merger Agreement"), which provides, among
ouher things, for (i) the commencement by Acquisition Sub of a tender offer (the "Offer")
for up 10 39,034,471 shares of the issued and cutstanding shares of common stock, par

value $.001 per share (the "Comoany Common Stock"), of the Company for $25.00 per
share net to the seller in cash (the "Offer Consideration”), and (ii) upon receipt of certain
U.S. regulatory approvals, the subsequent merger (the "Merger") of the Company with
and into Acquisition Sub. Pursuant to the Merger, the Company will become a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Buyer and each outstanding share of the Company Common
Stock, other than shares held in treasury or held by the Buyer and its affiliates, will be
converted into the right to receive, at the holder’s election, either (i) $25.00 in cash (the
"Cash Consideration") or (ii) 0.4065 shares of common stock, par value $2.50 per share
(the "Buyer Common Stock"), of the Buyer (the "Stock Consideration,” and together with—
the Cash Consideration and the Offer Consideration, the "Consideration"), subject to
adjustment in either case in certamn circumstances. The terms and conditions of the Offer
and the Merger are more fully set forth in the Merger Agreement.

You have asked for our opinion as to whether the Considerati .« to be received by the
holders of shares of Company Common Stock pursuant to the Offer and the Merger, taken
together, is fair from a f'nancial point of view to such holders.

For purposes of the opinion set forth herein, we have:

(1) analyzed certain publicly ~vailable financial statements and other
information of the Company and the Buyer, respectively;

(i1) reviewed certain internal financial statements and other financial and

operating data concerning the Company 2ad the Buyer prepared by the
managements of the Company and the Buyer, respectively;
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Board of Directors MORGAN STANLEY
August 3, 1995
Page 2

(i)  reviewed certain financial projections for the Buyer prepared by the
management of the Buyer;

reviewed certain financial projections for the Company, including
estimates of certain potential benefits of the proposed business
combination, prepared by the management of the Company;

discussed on a limited basis the past and current operations and financial
condition and the prospects of the Company and the Buyer with senior
executives of the Company and the Buyer, respectively;

reviewed the reported prices and trading activity for the Company
Common Stock and the Buyer Common Stock:

compared the financial performance of the Company and the prices and
trading activity of the Company Common Stock with that of certain other
comparable publicly-traded companies and their securities;

reviewed the financial terms, to the extent publicly available, of certain
comparable acquisition transactions;

discussed certain issues relating to the proposed spin-off of the Buyer's oi!
and gas exploration and production operations with senior executives of
the Buyer;

(x) participated in discussions among representatives of the Company, the
Buyer and their financial and legal advisors;

(xi)  reviewed the Merger Agreement and certain related documents; and
(xii) performed such other analyses as we have deemed appropriate.

We have assumed and relied upon, without independent verification, the accuracy and
completeness of the information reviewed by us for the purposes of this cpinion. With
respect to the financial projections, including the estimates of the Company of certain
potential benefits of the proposed business combination, we have assumed that they have
been reasonably prepared on bases reflecting the best currently available estimates and
Judgments of the future financial performance of the Company and the Buyer,
respectively. We have not made any independent valuation or appraisal of the assets or
liapilities of the Company or the Buyer, nor have we been furnished with any such
appraisals. Our opinion is necessarily based on economic, market and other conditions
as in effect on, and the information made available to us as of, the date hereof.

In arriving at our opinion, we were not authorized to solicit, and did not solicit, interest
from any party with respect to the acquisition of the Company or any of its assets.
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Board of Directors NOROAN STANLEY
August 3, 1995
Page 3

We express no opinion and make no recommendations as to whether the holders of
Company Common Stock should elect to receive either the Offer Consideration, the Cash
Consideration or the Stock Consideration.

We have acted as financial advisor to the Board of Directors of the Company in
connection with this transaction and will receive a fee for our services. In the past,
Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated ("Morgan Stanley”) and its affiliates have provided
financial advisory and financing services for the Company and the Buyer and have
received fees for the rendering of these services. In addition, the Morgan Stanley
Leveraged Equity Fund II, L.P., an affiliate of Morgan Stanley, owns approximately 8.5%
of the outstanding shares of Company Common Stock as of the date hereof and Mr Frank
V. Sica, a Managing Director of Morgan Stanley, is a member of the Board of Directors
of the Company.

It is understood that this letter is for the information of the Board of Directors of the
Company and may not be used for any other purpose without our prior written consent.
We consent, however, to the inclusion of this opinion as an exhibit to any Scheduie 14D-
9, proxy or registration statement distributed in connection with the Offer or the Merger.

Based on the foregoing, we are of the opinion on the date hereof that the Consideration
to be received by the holders of shares of Company Common Stock pursuant to the Offer
and the Merger, taken together, is fair from a financial point of view to such holders.

Very truly yours,
MORGAN STANLEY & CO. INCORPORATED

Ao il A

By:

Mahmoud A. Mamdani
Principal
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Union Pacific Corporation and Subsidiary Companies

Millions of Dollars,
Except Ratios and Per Share Amounts 1993 1992

1991

For the Year

Operating revenues $7.561 $7,294
Operating income 1,489 1,405
Income before cumulative effect

of accounting changes 705
Cumulative effect of accounting changes (175)
Net income 530 728
1,563 1,660
1,574 1,567

Cash from operations
Capital investments

oy

1

1

7.029

161

64
64
392

99
Lo

At Year-End

lotal debt $4,184 $4.099
Common stockholders’ equity 4,885 4,639

$4.050

4,163

Measurements

Earnings per share
Income before cumulative effec
f accounting changes $ 3.43
Cumulative effect of accounting changes (0.85)
Net income 2.58

Dividends declared per share 1.54
Debt to total capital employed 35.6%
Return on average common stockholders’ equity 11.1%

lude a net after airge of $175 million for the adoption of changes in
nd a $61 million charge for the deferred tax effect of the Omnibus Budget Reconciliation

have been $766 million ($3.73 net income per sha with a return on average common stockl

ial Statements). 1991 operating income and net incom cluding the spe

ve been $1,331 million and $639 million, respectiy 3.16 net ince er share), witl

common stocknolders equity of 14.2

CONTENTS

Letter to Our Shareholders
Seamless Service

Review of Operations
Financial Review

Financial Statements
Supplementary Information
fenYear Summary

Board of Directors

Officers

Map of Union Pacific back cover gatefold
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Union Pacific Railroad

1993

ney

VOTILIE lar $4.987

Operating Income (millions of dolla

$1.,042

Carloadings (1

4.619

Operating Ratio 79.1

strong earnings in the face

It 1N neq 20 vears

iing adjustments, net ince ne would have
compared to $667 million in 1992

vestern segme

time since 1949
'he recor Railroads track
idversely then, witl

nereased 1ts carload

ow K()

'ment should bolster

pments to Mexico
I dl aouble
for the res

teways into Mexico

rowtn 1s 1ts expanding network

1 major US. trucking comparnies, parti
ng I truckload business. These shipping
» enhanced Union Pacifics market share
and have maximi

ing substantial

and promising more for the remainder
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Union Pacific Resources

1993

Operating Revenues imillions of dollars) $1.323

Uperating Income (millions of dollars) $ 382

lotal Reserves (MMBOE) 445.4

fotal Production (MMBOE) 69.6

uring 1993 Union Pacific
aucton and record revenues. while increasing its reserves for

the sixth straight vear These increases wers eved with

Lo percent fewer emplovees. Excluding the accounting adjust-

ments, earnings would have risen to $309 million from $272
million in 1992

Equally important, Resources took several steps in 1993 to

P 1 Ot ) o } 1 ‘ . . i
nsure continued growth. A 1992 reorganization that created

proft centers has led to significant cost savings. improved
etficien ‘ofitabilit

with discoveries
the eastern Austin Cl
aaqitons m 1993 wers

barrels of oi

» 'edu

101 1O SSO0.0MN)
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EVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Overnite Transportation

1993

nues (miliions of dollars) 5439
nons of doilars) S 69

90.2

1NCreases

customers
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Skyway Freight Systems







Consolidated Results of Operations

1993 Compared to 1992

Consolidated: |

Operating Income

Operating Revenues

Railroad:

)




N\atural Resources

Irucking




9

1992 Compared to 1991

tailroad




I'rucking

Natural Resour-es




Lorporate Services and Other Operations: (

)

} Q24 ¢ )

Capital Investments

Cash Flows, Liquidity and Capital Resources

: .," ” II

Dividend History




FINANCIAL REVIEW

dssessed based on

n liti n or out-of-court set A Look Forward

Although the n .
(:('!H‘ 'ill | conomic |‘2|l'l()r\1

3 i w0
alit Ll B 0 AY

e Year-End Closing
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1994 Outlook: Rail volu
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Other Matters

Environmenta! Costs:




Independent Auditors’ Report Responsibilities for Financial Statements

Deloitte &
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BUSINESS SEGMI

n Paci

il

1

NTS

ic Corporation and Subsidiary Companies

Millions of Dollars

Operating Revenues

Railroad

Natural

| resources

14 .
Vvdsie

L.Orporn

"ale

Servic

Jement

es and other operations

Operating income (Loss)
(Note 3)

Natur

F'UCKIT

18

» management

Lorporate sery

vices and other operations

1.489

Income (Loss) before

\ccounting Adjustments
Notes 2 and 7

NOTES £ and

| I
naliroc

Natural

ud

resources

669

309

42
{9)
(245)

766

Cash from Operations

1.074
567
44

21

(143

$ 1,563

Assets {at Year-End)

S10.014
2.246
1.393

5802
.-’4"

$15.001

Depreciation, Depletion
and Amortization

$ 443
410
58
31

{

S ()4(,

Capital Expenditures

S 805
307

80




S

I

ATH

M}

NT

O}

(

Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses

Income

Per Share

2539
949
590
506
403

1.089

6.072

1.489
89
(324)

{99)




ATEMENT F CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION

1993

Liabilities and
Stockholders™ Equity

477
253
176
162
135
115
107
664

2,089

4.069
'_".(17!)
599
50
633
4,885

S15,001




STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS

1 and subsidiary (.«

1993

Cash from Operations

Depreciation, deplet

Deterred income taxes

Investing Activities

Equity and Financing Dividends paid (309)
\ctivities 1 repaid (Not (753)
(10)

930

(142)

Changes in Current Assets

and Liabilities ventories (8)
(49)
(33)

40

S (128)




F CHANGES IN COMMON STOCKHOLDTF

Miliions of Doll: 1993

Common Stock Common Stock, $2.50 par value

rized 500.000.000 shares)

Balance at beginning of vear (229,774,547 issued shares

in 1993; 228,410,296 in 1992; 126,182,132 in 1991)

Conversions, exercises of stock options
(1,012,628

Z0 Sndres 1in

1,032,780 in 1991)

Stock split (101,195,384 shares in 1991) {Note 11)

of vear (230,788,175 issued shares in
in 1992; 228,410,296 in 1991)

Paid-in Surplus

Balance at beginning of vear
Conversions, exercises of stock opuons and other

palance L ena

Retained Earnings

Dividends declared
Cash dividends
Stock split (Note 11)

geable note conversion (Note 8)

Ireasury Stock

(1.604)

$4.885




Significant Accounting Polici

Principles of Consolidation

( S dare stated

Inventories

Exploration and Production

Property and Depreciation

1es

Hevenue Recognition

Earnings Vor Share

Change in Presentation

1. Business




NOTES TO FINANCIAL

- Accounting Changes
Hu Corporation adopted the following accounting changes
with a cumulative adjustment — which resulted in a $175
million or $0.85 per shaie after-tax charge to earnings — in

January 1993

OPEL
S171)
(44)
(47)

125 3 (29)
$(0.14)

$(175)

32) S 0.61 $(0.85)

Other Postretirement Benefits (OPE B): The Financial

\ccounting Standards Board (FASB) issue d Statement No. 106,

“Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other

|

Penisions.” \'\‘m h requires that the cost of non pension

1S tor retirees be acerued during thei I period of em

} £ 1
ment. The a ,;‘ m ot this Statement will not affect future

‘ments for these benefits (see Note 10)

No. 109, “Account-

Ince [axes,” which requires the balance sheet

Income Taxes: The FASB issued Stateme nt

approach of ace untng tor income taxes, wnerebyv assets and

ilanitities are recorded a

it the tax rates currently enacted
Fhe Corporations results were not significantly affected by
the adoption of this Statem however, future results may

be aftected by changes in the corporate inco me tax rate

19935 income tax expense (before ac counting l'lz.’m:w\l rose

S73 million as a result of the Omnibus Budget Reconciliation

Act of 1993 (the 1993 Tax Act) (see Note 7)

Revenue Recognition: The Corporation changed its method

01 transportation reve nue ana expense recog 1on from

cruing both revenues and expenses at the inception of ser

the industry practice of allocating reve nues between
reporting periods based on relative transit time. while recog
HZINg expenses as incurred. The ( (H“"[tll]“ll\ results were

nificantly atfected by this accounting changs

STATEMENTS

3. 1991 Special Charge
In 1991, the Corporation announced a major restructuring
atter-tax)

program, including an $870 million ($575 million

charge. The program included a provision of S480 r illier, i
severance and other costs issoclated with personne. reduc-
tions at Union Pacific Railroad Company and its affiiiate

Missouri Pacific Railroad ( ompany (collectively the Railroad)
as well as $265 million for costs related to the disposition of
light density rail lines. In addition. the ( orporation provided
5125 million for oper

The Corporation spent $142 million a

ational realignments at its other operat
Hlf;.:‘”“l;)dllﬂN
million in 1993 and 1992 tor the restructuring

respectively

program

4. Price Risk Management

I'he Corporation utilizes futures contracts, option contracts
and swap agreements to manage price volatility related to
sales and purchases of hydrocarbons. Union Pacific
Resources Company (Resources) has purchased fixed price
contracts to hedge 1994 natural gas sales volumes of 161
mmcf/day at $2.27/mef, approximately 25% of Resources’

1994 natural gas production. Overnite ransportation

241

Company (Overnite) has purchased fixed price contracts to
hedge virtu: all of its 1994 diesel fuel consumption (62
million gallons at $0.48 per gallon). Credit risk related to

these activities is minimal

'», lnu-x(nu'n(s and Acquisitions
1 May 1993, the Corporation acquired all of the
stock of Skyway Freight Svstems, Ing (Skyway)

for 565 million and the conversion of its initial S7 million

outstanding

CoOmMiInon

preierred stock investment. Skyway specializes in_providing
customized logistics and transportation su pport for the time-
definite and specialized freight markets

In 1992, the Corporation exchanged its preferred stock
investment in Chicago and North Western Holdings Corpora-
tion vf,\\\ ) for non-voting common
Corporation holds a 30%

stock (the Stock). Through
additional Stock purchases, the
equity interest in CNW. The Stock is exchangeable into voting
common stock pending Interstate Commerce Commission
approval. The CNW investment is accounted for on the equity
method




6. Properties

(178)

(152)

(101)
141
2.6706

S2.559

199:

1.990
1,769

<. Income laxes

)




8. Debt

9.1 cases

2006
144
{180)

$4.069

1C. Retirement Plans

Pension Benefits




Other Postretirement Benefits: The Corpor

f AS N 06. “Emp




30.500 non shares coralr

lable for grant at

1L Rlc 1 | i 1dliorn | > Det

rporat

10Q72

13. Other Income — Net

Balance Deg J 4.696.460 2004 to




INFORMATION

Selected Quarterly Data Rail Transportation

Commodities

1993

ST.830 S1.848% S1.901 S1.982
43 ING 1435 416
(11) 195 108 23

(0.06) 0.96

0.3% 0.37

62.38

56 .88

levenu

¥
i

mplovee




SUPI

Expenditures

MENTARY

INFORMATION (unaudited)

Equipment and Terminals

1993
Capital Expenditures
8591
214
S80S
Maintenance Expenditures
S247
490

-~J
i |

fransportation Statistics

Capital Expenditures

Railroad (track miles)

N.861

2580
254
2510
2,017
Freight Operations
79.1
4.619

$1.032

{rucking

Freight Operations

Natural Resources

1993
254
17,105

9
3

5

)
237
166

6H.85
N0

Oil and Gas — Proved Reserves

1993
156.6
2.0
.3

20.8

4.6
(31.9)

156.9

1993

N 146

6Hll

N.206

1993

~1
-1




OWS \creage and Wells

(n 1N gas a0 S S |

1.709.2 , 694 4 : 1993
1.569
(35.6) 833
S 17.088
237.0 g 2,733
46.6 ) G i ) ! 4
(226.0) { 0S ' N ( S S
AW (M QY < 1 ( N t Q \ = ’ ! » " " ¢ » ! ! - W
\ : O ¢ i . G
e ( { 19%). 1 { ¥ r 1 o
{ () bharrels Q% 0 { ACLS. D I 1 nis ©eag 1 PeS
! )t f
g " \ S at Ik { ) 1993 1
Drilling and Production Activities \
1993
329 4.306
491 1.402
20 .
303
o Capitalized Exploration and Production Costs
)
1
295 b
1993 )
S S 386
i51
- w4
1993 110 {
S15 17 S s
15.66 197
9.84
P 3844
4.12
(2.208) Nt
S$1.636 . +
1993 Production
66.5
21.0 4
619.0 {
i ’ I I
a -




Costs Incurred in Expioration and Development
(Losts Incurr

111 Ol and gas property

Results of Operations for Producing Activities

1993
S1.044
315

‘

}

Standardized Measure of Discounted Future Net Cash
Flows Relating to Proved 0il and Gas Reserves

1993

S4.540

1.631)
(859)
2.030

(761)




TEN-YEA

Millions of

1993

R FINANCIAL S1

| Subsidiar

irs, Except Per Share

1992 [:‘r‘; Ir;(“,

MMARY

\mounts

1989

Operating Revenues

Operating Income (Loss)
\et Income (Loss)
Per Share:

Net Income (Loss)

Dividends

g 7.563
1.489
530

204 F 029

At Year-End

\
\SSets

kholders

S 15,001

1 ()OS

4.099

S 1374

1.563

$ 2,863

47.126
S160.400




Robert P. Bauman Richard B. Cheney E. Virgil Conway Spencer E Fecles

hadith Richards Hope Lawrence M. Jones Drew Lewis Richard 1. Mahoney

F'homas \. Revnolds, Jr lames D. Robinson, Hi Robert W. Roth

Richard D. Simmons




Executive Committee

Elbridge 1. Gerry, Jr. Williama H. Gray, ill

Compensation, Benefits and
Nominating Committee

Audit Committee

Claudine B. Malone John R. Mever

Finance and Corporate Development Committee
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Executive Offices Iransfer Agent and Registrar of Stock
Martin Tower First Chicago Trust Company of New York
Eighth and Eaton Avenues Post Office Box 2500

Bethlehem, Pennsylvania 18018 Jersey City, New Jersey 07303-2500
(610) 861-3200 it i

If vou have any questions regarding vour
account, contact First Chicagos Telephone
Union Pacific Response Center at (800) 446-2617 on weekdavs
Railroad Company oetween & am. and 10 p.m. and Saturdays
1416 Dodge Street between 8 am. and 3.30 p.m. (Eastert

Omaha, Nebraska 68179 write to First Chicago at the above add

Union Pacifie Stock Listing
Resources Company New York Stock Exchange
801 Cherry eet lcker Symbol: UNP

Fort Worth, Texas 76102

Annual Meeting of Stockholders
Overnite Transportatios May 11, 1994, 8:30 a.m
Company Little America Hotel
1000 Semmes Avenue Sali Lake City, Utah

P0O. Box 1216
) OXV Statement and pre form will be
Ric hmond. Virgir ia 23209 L Ne proxy statement ¢ .l;r. XV form will be
n March

USPCL, Inc

e | . SEC Form 10-K
15 West Greens Road, Suite 500 g

copy of the Cor
Houston, Texas 77067 \ By ( ; I

Umion Pacific Techn: logies writing t
7930 Clayton Road

s Secretary
S s, Missouri 63117

‘ Union Pacific Corporation
Martin Tower

Skyway Freight Systems, Inc. Eighth ¢

225 Westridg Sethlehem, Pennsylvania 18018

Watsonville. (

Quarterly Earnings Information
External Relations Office Beginning in 1994

205-13th Street, N\W, Suite 450 W tinue distributing
Washington, D.C. 20004 holders. Copies of
v |
quarterly earnings inform:
obtamned by telephoning (toli-free) or writing

w Corporations Transfer Agent as listed







Union Pacific Corporation and Subsidiary Companies

1994

For the Year

$7,798

1,595

958
(412)

546
1,99

1,597

At Year-End

$4,560
2,131

Measurements

Contents

s 1.66
(2.00)

2.66

1.66
§Q\ ",'4,

10.9%
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Operating Income

Revenues Per Employee




Resources: A Strong Year

A Strong Year for Union Pacific

The Railroad: One of a Kind
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The Sale of USPC!

The Sante Fe Pacific Merger Bid

Overrite: A Difficult Year

A Good Year for Union Pacific

Skyway and UP Technologies
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$5,318
$1,173

4,991

(0D

d tremendou

nded emplovees,
. " 1 i
| inancial results were favorapic.
1 [ V¢ ”'\\4\1.\':

lv 13 percent over last

Ing adjustments. ( arloadings rose more than 8 percent over

seven commodities posted g

t s atied ite dow B L i Tl B S
nerating ratio continued i1ts downward trend, dropping 1.2 pel

9 = better than any other western ratlroad.

five servi inies selected as a finalist in

|

Award competition

One of eight dedicated piggypackers
loads a container onto a flatcar

at the Railroad's busy Seattle Argo
Yard. In 1994, intermodal ramps
doubled at the Argo Yard and all
other traffic was diverted to the
nearby Van Asselt Yard. As a result,
trailer and container lifts increased

significantly at Argo










iNew Horizuns

Eight-hundred pound, concret

sties drop into place at
)-1o0t intervals as a third main

iine is constructed to alleviate

traftic constraints between North

Platte and Brady, Nebraska. In

the same operation, this special
*quipment installs continuous
1ed rails, laying a mile or more

of track in a day

Carloadings










1994

$1,306

Production

earessive exploration and production program he iped UPR(
domestic independent o ympany and ritler i

ilong with the pui
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100 1 g =)
1994 was the $725

which provided an

irea = Ozona in West fexas ~

g with promising properties in south

Louisiana and Fast Texas, W th numerous

potential drill sites, O; Il help to under

write UPRC's future long into the twentv-first
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Jnion Pacific Resources purchased

Dut can have a productive lite of o
Amax Oil & Gas in March and has

enters — include East and South Texas (Car tha
accelerated development of Ozona,

<. All had substantial gains i production in 1994

t
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ron 1Mo Oty
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day through 1996 fargest gas pi ng facilities i
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UPRC's successful well in the
Lodgepole fieid in northern Utah
was the first completed horizontal
well in the Overthrust. Belt of the
Land Grant. This field will be devel-

oped aggressively in the nineties

In the Land Grant, Resources has brought six wells on<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>